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To, 
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P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai-400001. 
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Sub: Annual Report for the year 2019-20. 
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Report of the Company for the year 2019-20 alongwith notice of Annual General Meeting to 
be held on Wednesday, 30th Day of September, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing (VC)/other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM). 

Kindly take the same on your records. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 
For Ashoka Metcast Limited 

Encl: As above 

Ashoka Metcast Limited 
Reg. Office: 7th Floor, Ashoka Chambers, Opp. HCG Hospital, Mithakhali Six Roads, 
Mithakhali Ahmadabad 380006. Website: www.ashokametcast.in 
Email : info@ashokametcast.in CIN : U70101GJ2009PLC057642 T: 079 26463226 
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NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that 11th Annual General Meeting of Ashoka Metcast Limited will be held on Wednesday, 30th 

Day of September, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact 
the following Business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March, 2020 including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 and Statement of 
Profit and Loss and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To re appoint Mr. Ashok C. Shah (DIN: 02467830), who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.  
 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

3. Approval of Related Party Transaction. 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 15 of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions and rules 
thereto, and Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and subject to such amendments as may be made therein, the approval of 
the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter 
into transactions as detailed hereunder with following  Related Parties as defined under the Act for 
purchase/sale of goods, services and/or any other business activities during each of the financial year 2020-
21 and 2021-22. 
 

Name of related party Maximum Amount of 
transaction for each financial 
year 2020-21 and 2021-22 

Type of transaction 

Rhetan Rolling Mills Private 
Limited 

100 crores Purchase/sale of goods, services 
and/or any other business activities 

Lesha Industries Limited 100 crores Purchase/sale of goods, services 
and/or any other business activities 

Ashnisha Industries Limited 100 crores Purchase/sale of goods, services 
and/or any other business activities 

Gujarat Natural Resources 
Limited 

50 crore Purchase/sale of goods, services 
and/or any other business activities 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. Shalin Ashok Shah, Managing Director and Mr. Ashok C. Shah, Director of the 
Company be and is hereby authorised to negotiate and finalise other terms and conditions and to do all 
such acts, deeds and things including delegation of powers as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.” 
 

 
 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:  September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 

Shalin A. Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00297447 
 
 

 
1



 
Annual Report 2019-2020                                            ________________________ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED                               

 

Annexure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting 
Details of Directors seeking Reappointment in Annual General Meeting 

 
Name of the Director Mr. Ashok C. Shah(DIN: 02467830) 
Age (Yrs.) 76 years 
Date of Birth 07/09/1944 
Date of first appointment on the Board 23/10/2017 
No. of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the year 

Six 

Brief Resume and expertise Engineering and Administrative Degree. He has vast experience 
of more than 40 years in technical and administrative fields. 

Designation Director 
Chairman/Member of the Committee of 
the Board of Directors of the Company 

Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship committee and 
Nomination And Remuneration Committee in Ashoka Metcast 
Limited. 
Member of Audit Committee and Nomination And 
Remuneration Committee in Gujarat Natural Resources Limited. 
Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship committee in Lesha 
Industries Limited. 
Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship committee in Ashnisha 
Industries Limited 

No. of Shares held in the Company 5,00,000 
Directorship in Other Listed Company Gujarat Natural Resources Limited 

Lesha Industries Limited 
Ashnisha Industries Limited 

Related to other directors Mr. Ashok C. Shah and Mr. Shalin A. Shah are related as Father-
Son. No other directors are related inter se. 

  
 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 

Shalin A. Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00297447 
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Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Item No. 3 
 
Approval of Related Party Transaction. 
 

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, at their respective meetings held on September 
4, 2020 has approved a proposal for entering into following related party transactions: 

Name of Related Party 1. Rhetan Rolling Mills Private Limited 
2. Lesha Industries Limited and 
3. Ashnisha Industries Limited 
4. Gujarat Natural Resources Limited 

Name of Related Director or KMP Mr. Ashok C. Shah, Mr. Shalin A. Shah, Ms. Payal Pandya 
and Ms. Chitra Thaker 

Nature of relationship Mr. Shalin A. Shah, Managing Director of the Company is 
also Managing Director of Gujarat Natural Resources 
Limited and is Director of Ashnisha Industries Limited, 
Rhetan Rolling Mills Private Limited and Lesha Industries 
Limited. 
Mr. Ashok C. Shah, Director of the Company is Managing 
Director of Ashnisha Industries Limited and Lesha 
Industries Limited and is Director of Rhetan Rolling Mills 
Private Limited and Gujarat Natural Resources Limited. 
Ms. Payal P. Pandya Independent Director of the 
Company is Independent Director in Lesha Industries 
Limited and Gujarat Natural Resources Limited. 
Ms. Chitra Thaker, Independent Director of the Company 
is also Independent Director in Gujarat Natural 
Resources Limited and is Company Secretary of Lesha 
Industries Limited. 

Material terms, monetary value and particulars of 
the contract or arrangement; 

The transaction between the parties will be in the nature 
of purchase/sale of goods, services and/or any other 
business activities. The amount of the transactions shall 
be as stated in the resolution and the same has to be 
paid as per the terms agreed by both the parties. 

The Manner of determining the pricing and other 
commercial terms, both included as part of 
contract and not considered as part of the contract 

The pricing is commensurate with the market value of 
the goods and shall be at arm’s length. 

Any other information relevant or important for 
the members to take a decision on the proposed 
resolution 

N.A. 

 

The transaction is Related Party Transaction and in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the applicable rules there under prior approval of the Shareholders by way of 
Special Resolution is required. 
 

Accordingly, your directors recommend the resolution at Item No. 3 for approval as Special resolution as set out in 
the notice of the meeting. 
 

Except Mr. Shalin A. Shah, Managing Director and Mr. Ashok C. Shah, Ms. Payal Pandya and Ms. Chitra Thaker, 
Directors of the Company; Mrs. Leena A. Shah, Mrs. Payal S. Shah Relative of Director; Shalin A. Shah HUF, Lesha 
Ventures Private Limited and Ashnisha Industries Limited, Companies in which Director of the Company are 
Director/Member, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and KMPs 
are concerned or interested in the Resolution. 
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NOTES: 
 
1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant 
to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, physical attendance of the Members to the 
AGM venue is not required and Annual General Meeting (AGM) be held through video conferencing (VC) or other 
audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 
 
2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to 
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates 
are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and 
cast their votes through e-voting. 
 
3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at 
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to 
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into 
an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well as venue voting 
on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 
6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.ashokametcast.in. The Notice can also be accessed 
from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on 
the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 
7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and 
MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 
 
8. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only 
in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of 
portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 
to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Bigshare 
Services Private Limited for assistance in this regard. 
 
9. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered/updated their email addresses are 
requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with 
Bigshare Services Private Limited in case the shares are held by them in physical form.  
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10. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank 
details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs 
in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to Bigshare Services Private Limited in case the shares are 
held by them in physical form.  
 
11. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along 
with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses 
are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will 
also be available on the Company’s website www.ashokametcast.in and website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.com. 
 
12. The Business set out in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system and the Company is 
providing facility for voting by electronic means. Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are given in 
this Notice. 
 
13. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will be closed from 27th September, 2020 to 30th September, 2020 (both days inclusive). 
 
14. The relative Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the special 
business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto. 
 
15. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in the Electronic form are therefore 
requested to submit their PAN to their depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 
Members holding Physical shares can submit their PAN to the Company/ Bigshare Services Private Limited.  
 
16. Since AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in the Notice. 
 
17. Instruction for E-Voting and joining AGM are as follows: 
 
EVOTING INSTRUCTIONS 
 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on (Sunday, 27th September, 2020 at 09:00 A.M.) and ends on (Tuesday, 29th 

September, 2020 at 05:00 P.M.) The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. And cut 
of Date for E-voting is 25th September, 2020. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 
Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 
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Details on Step 1 is mentioned below: 
 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholders’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on 
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 
4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 
ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 
 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 
5. Your password details are given below: 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 
vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 
 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’. 
(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and 
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your registered address. 
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Details on Step 2 is given below: 
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on 
Active Voting Cycles. 
 
2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle is in active status. 
 
3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 
 
4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 
5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 
 
6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 
7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 
 
8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 
 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cschintanpatel@gmail.com with a 
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
 
2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
 
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-
222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
 
 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
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In case shares are held in physical mode: 
Please update your email id by providing the required details on web link provided as “REGISTER YOUR EMAIL ID” on 
the website of the company www.ashokametcast.in. 
 
In case shares are held in demat mode: 
Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address and bank account details in your 
demat account, as per the process advised by your DP. 
 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-
voting. 
 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall 
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 
3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on 
the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote evoting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by 
using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login 
where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. 
Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password 
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute 
rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance at 
least 10 days before the AGM mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at compliance@ashokametcast.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views or have questions may send their questions in advance, 
mentioning their Name, Demat account number, Folio Number, mobile number and e-mail address at 
compliance@ashokametcast.in from September 18, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) to September 22, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). 
Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM. 
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Directors’ Report 
 

To, 
The Members, 
 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and 
the Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020. 

 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 
                                                                        Financial Results                                                                         (` in Lakhs) 

` in Lakh  Standalone Consolidated 
Particulars Year ended 

31/03/2020 
Year ended 
31/03/2019 

Year ended 
31/03/2020 

Year ended 
31/03/2019 

Total Revenue 197.83 23.92 2206.10 28.40 
Expenditure 199.14 29.58 2169.07 33.21 
Profit before Depreciation (1.31) (5.66) 37.03 (4.81) 
Depreciation 2.99 2.39 27.23 3.56 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (4.3) (8.05) 9.80 (8.37) 
Extraordinary/Exceptional items - - - - 
Provision for Taxation     
Income Tax - - - - 
Deferred Tax (1.08) 0.31 2.45 0.35 
Share in Associate N.A. N.A. (4.84) (10.66) 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (3.22) (8.36) 2.51 (19.38) 

 

2. PERFORMANCE: 
The Company is into the business of trading of steel, trading of goods and others. Revenue from operations 
during the year has increased substantially and the loss incurred has reduced as compared to previous year. 
However, considering the growth of the steel industry, the management is optimistic about the promising 
prospect for the Company. 
 
 

3. DIVIDEND: 
Due to loss during the year, the Company is not able to declare Dividend. 
 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVE: 
Reserves & Surplus at the end of the year stood at `1057.83 Lacs as compared to ` 1058.20 Lacs at the beginning 
of the year.  

 

5. SHARE CAPITAL: 
 At present, the Company has only one class of shares – equity shares with face value of ` 10/- each. The 

authorised share capital of the Company is divided into 1,10,00,000 equity shares of face value of ` 10/- each 
amounting to ` 11,00,00,000/- and issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital is divided into 1,07,10,000 
equity shares of face value of ` 10/- each amounting to ` 10,71,00,000/-.  

 

6. DEPOSITS: 
 Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 

7. ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE: 
 The activities carried out by the Company are not power intensive and the cost of the energy is insignificant. The 

Company has not imported any technology during the year and there are no plans to import any kind of 
technology in near future and hence information regarding its absorption is not applicable. There were no 
research activities carried out during the year as well as no foreign exchange income or outgo during the year. 
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8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:  
 There were no such material changes occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of the Company to 

which the balance sheet relates and the date of the report which can affect the financial position of the 
Company. 

 
 It is pertinent to note that Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the nationwide lockdown was imposed from 23rd March, 

2020 which was further extended by various announcements made by the Central and State Government around 
the time. Manufacturing facility of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary was shut down during the lockdown 
period as the Company and its Subsidiary were not part of Government denominated indispensable services. 
Subsidiary’s manufacturing plant has resumed operations from May 10, 2020 and the Company started its 
operations from May 18, 2020. The Company has made assessment of its liquidity position for the financial year 
2020-21 and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets, right of use assets, investments, inventory and trade receivables. Based on current indicators 
of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The 
situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential 
future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as on balance sheet date. The 
Company has made detailed disclosure of COVID-19 impact on the Company under Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/84 dated May 20. 

 

9. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 
 

No material order has been passed by the Regulators/Court or Tribunals which can impact the going concern 
status and Company’s operation in future. 
 

10. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
Rhetan Rolling Mills Private Limited formerly known as Shree Ghantakarna Rolling Mills Private Limited is Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary and Vivanza Biosciences Limited is an associate company of the Company. 
 

There are no joint venture companies of the Company. There has been no material change in the nature of the 
business of the subsidiary. 
 

As required under Rule 8 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board’s Report has been prepared on 
standalone financial statements and a report on performance and financial position of the subsidiary/associate 
included in Form AOC – 1 is attached herewith as ANNEXURE-I (A). 
 

In accordance with third proviso of Section 136 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report of the 
Company, containing therein its standalone and the consolidated financial statements has been placed on the 
website of the Company, www.ashokametcast.in. Shareholders interested in obtaining a copy of the audited 
annual accounts of the subsidiary company may write to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered 
office. 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (1) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of your Company’s 
subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached to the Financial Statements. 
 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT BY THE COMPANY: 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments, if any covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements.  
 

12. MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
During the year under the review, 6 (Six) Board meetings were held, with gap between Meetings not exceeding 
the period prescribed under the  Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.  
 

The Board meeting dates are finalized in consultation with all directors and agenda papers backed up by 
comprehensive notes and detailed background information are circulated well in advance before the date of the 
meeting thereby enabling the Board to take informed decisions.  
 

 
10



 
Annual Report 2019-2020                                            ________________________ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED                               

 

The intervening gap between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
Details of Board meetings held during the year and attendance of directors thereat is as under: 

Date of Board 
Meeting 

Directors who attended the meeting 

24/04/2019 Shalin A. Shah Ashok C. Shah Payal P. Pandya Chitra J. Thaker 
22/05/2019 Shalin A. Shah Ashok C. Shah Payal P. Pandya Chitra J. Thaker 
31/08/2019 Shalin A. Shah Ashok C. Shah Payal P. Pandya Chitra J. Thaker 
14/11/2019 Shalin A. Shah Ashok C. Shah Payal P. Pandya Chitra J. Thaker 
27/01/2020 Shalin A. Shah Ashok C. Shah Payal P. Pandya Chitra J. Thaker 
12/02/2020 Shalin A. Shah Ashok C. Shah Payal P. Pandya Chitra J. Thaker 

 
 

 

13. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:  
 During the year, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted some of its Committees.  
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: The Company constituted its Audit Committee comprising of following Directors: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name & DIN of the Director Status Category 

1 Ms. Payal Pandya (DIN: 07658223) Chairperson Non – Executive and Independent Director 
2 Ms. Chitra Thaker (DIN: 07911689) Member Non – Executive and Independent Director 
3 Mr. Shalin Shah (DIN: 00297447) Member Executive and Non – Independent Director 

 

 Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee: 
       Committee Members Meetings held Meetings attended 

Ms. Payal Pandya 4 4 
Ms. Chitra Thaker 4 4 
Mr. Shalin Shah 4 4 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: The Company is having a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee comprising of following Directors: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name & DIN of the Director Status Category 

1 Ms. Chitra Thaker (DIN: 07911689) Chairperson Non – Executive and Independent Director 
2 Ms. Payal Pandya (DIN: 07658223) Member Non – Executive and Independent Director 
3 Mr. Ashok Shah (DIN: 02467830) Member Non – Executive and Non – Independent 

Director 
  

One meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the year and all members had 
attended the meeting. 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: The Company is having a Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
comprising of following Directors: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name & DIN of the Director Status Category 

1 Ms. Payal Pandya (DIN: 07658223) Chairperson Non – Executive and Independent Director 
2 Ms. Chitra Thaker (DIN: 07911689) Member Non – Executive and Independent Director 
3 Mr. Ashok Shah (DIN: 02467830) Member Non – Executive and Non – Independent Director 
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 Attendance of each member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
       Committee Members Meetings held Meetings attended 

Ms. Payal Pandya 4 4 
Ms. Chitra Thaker 4 4 
Mr. Ashok Shah 4 4 

 

14. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
An extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is attached herewith as ANNEXURE-II. 
 

15. INSURANCE: 
All the Properties of the Company are adequately insured. 
 

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  
Details of the related party transactions entered at arm’s length are given in Form AOC-2 attached as 
ANNEXURE-I (B) to the Financial Statements. 
 

Related Party disclosure under regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as under:  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Disclosure of loans / advances / investments / 
Outstanding during the year 

As at 
31st March, 2020 Maximum amount 

during the year 

1 Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiary 95135000 95135000 

2 Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associate 0 0 

3 Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
firms/companies in which directors are interested 0 0 

 

Further, transactions if any of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group 
which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the listed entity are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.  
 

17. DIRECTORATE AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:  
The Board of Directors of your company has various executive and non-executive directors including 
Independent Directors who have wide and varied experience in different disciplines of corporate functioning. No 
director has been appointed or resigned from the Board during the year. 
 
Mrs. K. C.  Parikh has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on April 24, 2019 and she 
resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer on July 31, 2019. Mr. Subha R. Dash has been appointed as Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company on June 9, 2020. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. Ashok C. Shah (DIN: 02467830) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible in terms of Section 164 of the Act offers himself for re-appointment.  
 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

18. EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS: 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015, the Board had 
carried out performance evaluation of its own, the Board Committees and of the Independent directors. 
Independent Directors at a separate meeting evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Board 
as a whole and of the Chairman of the Board.  
 

The following were the Evaluation Criteria: 
(a) For Independent Directors: 

- Knowledge and Skills 
- Professional conduct 
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- Duties, Role and functions 
 

(b) For Executive Directors: 
- Performance as Team Leader/Member. 
- Evaluating Business Opportunity and analysis of Risk Reward Scenarios 
- Key set Goals and achievements 
- Professional Conduct, Integrity 
- Sharing of Information with the Board 

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 

19. POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 
The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, formulated criteria for 
determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of a Director. No remuneration is paid to any 
of the Directors of the Company including Managing Director. 
 

20. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION: 
The Company had not paid any remuneration to the Managing Director or any sitting fees to Non-Executive 
Directors for attending any meetings during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 
 

21. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING:  
Independent Directors of the Company had met during the year under the review on March 14, 2020. The 
Independent Directors’ in its meeting reviewed and considered: 
1. The performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors; 
2. The performance of the Chairperson of the Company;  
3. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management of the 

Company and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the Board of Directors to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. 

 

22. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:  
There are currently Three Committees of the Board as enumerated hereunder: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee  
 

23. AUDITORS: 
A. Statutory Auditors 
Resolution appointing M/s. Sunil Poddar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regd. No. 110603W as statutory 
auditors of the Company for a term of five years to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting 
to be held in 2024 was passed by the shareholders of the Company in its Annual General Meeting held on 
September 28, 2019. 
 

The Members may note that consequent to the changes in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated May 7, 2018, the 
proviso to Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with explanation to sub-rule 7 of Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the requirement of ratification of appointment of Auditors by the 
Members at every AGM has been done away with. Therefore, the Company is not seeking any ratification of 
appointment of M/s. Sunil Poddar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regd. No. 110603W as the Auditors of the 
Company, by the Members at the ensuing AGM. 
 

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is a part of the Annual Report. The 
notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any 
further comments. 
 

There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their 
Report. 
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B. Secretarial Auditors 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Chintan K. Patel, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Ahmedabad to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed 
herewith as Annexure IV. 
 

The observations of the Secretarial Auditor in the Secretarial Audit Report are self-explanatory and therefore do 
not call for any further comments. 
 

24. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORK: 
The Company has an Internal Financial Control System, appropriate considering the size and complexity of its 
operations. The internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively so as to ensure orderly and 
efficient conduct of business operations. The Audit Committee in consultation with the internal auditors 
formulates the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the internal audit. Based on the 
internal audit report and review by the Audit committee, process owners undertake necessary actions in their 
respective areas. The internal auditors have expressed that the internal control system in the Company is robust 
and effective. The Board has also put in place requisite legal compliance framework to ensure compliance of all 
the applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

25. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
Company has implemented an integrated risk management approach through which it reviews and assesses 
significant risks on a regular basis to help ensure that there is a robust system of risk controls and mitigation in 
place. Senior management periodically reviews this risk management framework to keep updated and address 
emerging challenges. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through 
mitigating actions on a continuing basis. 
 

26. VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
In accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted a 
Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism to establish a vigil mechanism for the directors and employees to report 
genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed and to report to the management instances of unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct.  

 

27. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for 
dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and the 
designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company 
and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the 
Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code. 
 
The Company has adopted and amended its Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading w.e.f. April 1, 2019 
pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 
2018. 
 

28. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and to the best of their knowledge and belief and 
according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors state that- 
 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

ii. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 2020 and of the profit and loss of the company for that 
period; 
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iii. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
v. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively, and 
vi. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
As per Regulation 15(2)(b)of the SEBI Listing Regulations, compliance with the corporate governance provisions 
as specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C , D and E 
of Schedule V, shall not apply to the Company. The Certificate of the non applicability of submission of Report on 
Corporate Governance is attached as Annexure - V to the Directors Report.  
 

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
The Company is not covered under section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 hence details regarding policy on 
Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company.    
 

31.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Your Directors take this opportunity to express their gratitude for the generous commitment, dedication, hard 
work and significant contribution made by employees at all levels for the development of the Company. Your 
Directors also sincerely thank to all the stakeholders, customers, vendors, bankers, business associates, 
government, other statutory bodies and look forward to their continued assistance, co-operation and support. 
 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 

Ashok C. Shah 
Director 

DIN: 02467830 

 
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

 INDUSTRIAL STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT: 
The Company is basically in business of trading of steel products. The Indian steel rebars market is highly 
fragmented and unorganized – more than 1,800 re-rollers (representing unorganized sector) are reported to be 
operating in India. Being volume driven business, rebar market is dominated by regional players due to high 
logistic expenses. Increased competition in the Rebar industry has resulted in the market becoming 
commoditized. Industry players in the last five years have focused more on marketing and branding of the 
product. 
 

 OVERVIEW: 
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the India. The management of the company accepts 
responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements, as well as for various estimates and 
judgments used therein. The estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements have been made on a 
prudent and reasonable basis, in order that the financial statements reflect in a true and fair manner the form 
and substance of transactions, and reasonably present the company’s state of affairs and profit for the year.  

 

 OPPORTUNITY & THREATS: 
With increased focus on urbanization, the rebar market is likely to witness a strong growth in coming years. Slow 
growth was recorded albeit temporarily after a slowdown in India economic growth in the past few years. 
COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected all the industry segments and our Company is no exception. It is a 
challenge to sustain in the current market scenario. 
 

 COMPETITION: 
Steel being a global industry, we face competition from various domestic and international manufacturers and 
traders. Competition emerges from small as well as big players in the steel industry. The organized players in the 
industry compete with each other by providing high quality, consistent and time bound products and value 
added services. We have a number of competitors offering products similar to us. We believe the principal 
elements of competition in our line of business are ready finance, consistent and quality products, prompt 
availability and strong relations with structural steel product market and especially TMT bars manufacturers & 
traders. We compete against our competitors by establishing ourselves as a knowledge-based trading and 
manufacturing company with cordial relations with various suppliers, which enables us to provide our customers 
with bulk quantities at reasonable rates to meet their requirements. 
 

 SEGMENT WISE AND PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE: 
Details on segment wise performance of the Company is provided separately in Notes to Accounts. 

 

 RISK AND CONCERN: 
We operate a B2B model trading business vertical which is dependent on third party transportation providers for 
the delivery of our traded good and also for raw materials and other products. Accordingly, continuous increase 
in transportation costs or unavailability of transportation services for our products, as well the extent and 
reliability of Indian infrastructure is a major risk concern for the Company. 
 

Further, the Company is involved in high volume-low margin business. To regularly grow our turnover and 
effectively execute our key business processes is the most important challenge for the Company. 
 

Currently, the Company’s major sales are in the state of Gujarat. Although investment in the steel industry in 
Gujarat has been encouraged, there can be no assurance that this will continue. Expanding geographically, 
gaining acceptance or being able to take advantage of any expansion opportunities outside our current markets, 
would be demanding. 
 

 

 INITIATIVES BY THE COMPANY: 
 Focus is laid on marketing and branding of the product. Management continuously endeavours to maintain the 

quality of the product traded and timely delivery of the product.  
  

 The Company is quite confident that the overall profitability would improve in a sustainable manner, as a result 
of this strategy. 
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 OUTLOOK: 
The profit margins in the industry are under pressure.  The Company is confident to meet the challenges with its 
strength in marketing network, its strategic planning, Research & Development, productivity improvement and 
cost reduction exercise.  
 

 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 
Your Company places significant emphasis and efforts on the internal control systems. The Company has 
appointed an internal auditor for the same with such powers and responsibilities that are required to ensure the 
adequacy of the internal Control System.  

 

 HUMAN RESOURCE: 
Your Company firmly believes that employees are the most valuable assets and key players of business success 
and sustained growth. Various employee benefits, recreational and team building efforts are made to enhance 
employee skills, motivation as also to foster team spirit. Industrial relations were cordial throughout the year.  

 

 HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION: 
Your Company has complied with all the applicable environmental laws and labour laws. The Company has been 
complying with the relevant laws and has taken necessary measures to protect the environment.  
In view of the current COVID pandemic, health and safety measures have taken an unprecedented importance 
and the Company is taking all the necessary measures in this regards.  

 

 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
The statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" section describes the Company's 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be "forward looking statements" 
within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The annual results can differ materially from those 
expressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, Government policies and other 
incidental factors. 
 

 DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS 
THEREOF : 
Debtors Turnover Ratio: Stood at 0.44 
Explanation: The Company had no Revenue from operation during the previous year whereas the same is there 
during the year and accordingly the debtors turnover ratio as mentioned herein above. 
Current Ratio: 
Current Ratio as on 31st March, 2020 stood at 11.23 as compared to 234.24 during the previous year. 
Debt Equity Ratio: 
Debt Equity Ratio as on 31st March, 2020 stood at 0.14 as compared to 0.24 during the previous year. 
 

 DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION THEREOF. 
The Company has incurred loss during the year and due to adjustment of past year’s losses, your Company falls 
short to earn significant sum as return on Net Worth.  
  

 DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE : 
Operational performance viz. total revenue during the year stood at Rs.197.84 lakhs and the Company incurred 
loss tuning to Rs.3.22 lakhs. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year stood at Rs. 11.90 lakhs. 
 
 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
Ashok C. Shah 

Director 
DIN: 02467830 

 
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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ANNEXURE – I (A) TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
Form AOC- 1 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries  
1 Name of the subsidiary Rhetan Rolling Mills Private Limited (Formerly Shree 

Ghantakarna Rolling Mills Private Limited) 
2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 25/09/2017 
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary 2019-20 
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on 

the last date of the relevant Financial year 
INR 
(Rs. in lacs) 

5 Share capital 400.00 
6 Reserves & surplus -308.09 
7 Total assets 3049.70 
8 Total Liabilities 2957.79 
9 Investments 104.39 
10 Turnover 2000.84 
11 Profit before taxation 14.10 
12 Provision for taxation(Deferred tax revenue) 3.62 
13 Profit after taxation 10.48 
14 Proposed Dividend Nil 
15 % of shareholding 100%  held by Ashoka Metcast Limited 

2. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - None 
3. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. - NA 
 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures  
 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 
Ventures 

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Vivanza Biosciences Limited (VBL) 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date  31/03/2020 
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the 
year end  

 

No.  9,50,000 
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture  95,00,000 
Extend of Holding %  23.75 
3. Description of how there is significant influence  Company holds more than 20% equity 

shares of VBL. 
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated  As per AS-21, company is not required to 

consolidate associate concern but the same 
has been done in accordance with AS-23. 

5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet  

Rs. 73,72,916 

6. Profit / Loss for the year   
i. Considered in Consolidation  (Rs. 4,83,912) 
i. Not Considered in Consolidation   

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: None 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 

Ashok C. Shah 
Director 

DIN: 02467830 

 
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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ANNEXURE – I (B) TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

 
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 
 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction 
under third proviso thereto. 
 
1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.: Nil 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a)   Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship -- 
b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -- 
c)       Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -- 
d)   Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any -- 
e)        Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ -- 
f)    Date of approval by the Board -- 
g)   Amount paid as advances, if any -- 
h)       Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188 
-- 

 
2.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a)   Name (s) of the related party & nature 
of relationship 

Lesha Industries Limited 
(Company in which Mr. Shalin A. Shah, Mr. Ashok C. Shah and 
Ms. Payal P. Pandya, Directors of the Company are Directors and 
Ms. Chitra Thaker, Director of Company is Company Secretary of 
Lesha Industries Limited) 

b)   Nature of contracts / arrangements / 
transaction 

Rent 

c) Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements / transaction 

Rent Agreement executed for a period of 11 months 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Rent Agreement 

e)  Date of approval by the Board, if any 24/04/2019 
f)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
Ashok C. Shah 

Director 
DIN: 02467830 

 
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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ANNEXURE – II TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020 
 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 
Administration) Rules, 2014. 

  
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1. CIN U70101GJ2009PLC057642 
2. Registration Date 29/07/2009 
3. Name of the Company Ashoka Metcast Limited 
4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares and Indian Non-Government 

Company 
5. Address of the Registered office  & 

contact details 
7th Floor, Ashoka Chambers, Opp. HCG Hospital, Mithakhali Six 
Roads, Mithakhali, Ahmedabad – 380006, Gujarat 

6. Whether listed company Yes 
7. Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 
 Bigshare Services Private Limited  
 1st floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,  

Opposite Vasant Oasis, Marol Maroshi Road,          
Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400059.  
Tel. No.: +91 – 22 – 6263 8200  
E-mail: bssahd@bigshareonline.com 
Website: www.bigshareonline.com  

 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY : 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of main 
products / services 

 NIC Code of the 
Product/service 
 

%  to total turnover of the company 

1 Trading of Goods 46691 78.75% 
2 Trading of Steel 46691 21.25% 

  
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  -  

Sr. 
No. 

Name and address of the 
Company 

CIN/GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary / 

Associate 

% of shares held Applicable 
section 

1. Rhetan Rolling Mills 
Private Limited (Formerly 
Known As Shree 
Ghantakarna Rolling Mills 
Private Limited 

U27100GJ1984PTC007041 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii) 

2.  Vivanza Biosciences 
Limited 

L24110GJ1982PLC005057 Associate 23.75% 2(6) 

 

 
20



An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t 2
01

9-
20

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

_A
SH

O
KA

 M
ET

CA
ST

 LI
M

IT
ED

 
   IV

. 
SH

AR
E 

H
O

LD
IN

G
 P

AT
TE

RN
 (E

Q
U

IT
Y 

SH
AR

E 
CA

PI
TA

L 
BR

EA
KU

P 
AS

 P
ER

CE
N

TA
G

E 
O

F 
TO

TA
L 

EQ
U

IT
Y)

: 
 

A)
 

CA
TE

G
O

RY
-W

IS
E 

SH
AR

E 
H

O
LD

IN
G

 
 

 
Ca

te
go

ry
 o

f S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s 
N

o.
 o

f S
ha

re
s 

he
ld

 a
t t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r a

s 
on

 3
1st

 M
ar

ch
, 2

01
9 

N
o.

 o
f S

ha
re

s 
he

ld
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r a

s 
on

 3
1st

 
M

ar
ch

, 2
02

0 
%

 
Ch

an
ge

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
  

D
em

at
 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 
To

ta
l 

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 

Sh
ar

es
 

D
em

at
 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 
To

ta
l 

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 

Sh
ar

es
 

A.
 P

ro
m

ot
er

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(1
) I

nd
ia

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a)
 In

di
vi

du
al

/ H
U

F 
47

09
80

0 
N

il 
47

09
80

0 
43

.9
8 

47
09

80
0 

N
il 

47
09

80
0 

43
.9

8 
N

il 
b)

 C
en

tr
al

 G
ov

t 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
c)

 S
ta

te
 G

ov
t(

s)
 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

d)
 B

od
ie

s C
or

p.
 

20
0 

N
il 

20
0 

N
il 

20
0 

N
il 

20
0 

N
il 

N
il 

e)
 B

an
ks

 / 
FI

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
f) 

An
y 

ot
he

r F
or

ei
gn

 In
di

vi
du

al
 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

To
ta

l s
ha

re
ho

ld
in

g 
of

 P
ro

m
ot

er
 (A

) 
47

10
00

0 
N

il 
47

10
00

0 
43

.9
8 

47
10

00
0 

N
il 

47
10

00
0 

43
.9

8 
N

il 
B.

 P
ub

lic
 S

ha
re

ho
ld

in
g 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1.

 In
st

itu
tio

ns
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
a)

 M
ut

ua
l F

un
ds

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
b)

 B
an

ks
 /

 F
I 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

c)
 C

en
tr

al
 G

ov
t 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

d)
 S

ta
te

 G
ov

t(
s)

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
e)

 V
en

tu
re

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
ds

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
f) 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
g)

 F
IIs

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
 h

) F
or

ei
gn

 V
en

tu
re

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
ds

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
i) 

O
th

er
s (

sp
ec

ify
) 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

Su
b-

to
ta

l (
B)

(1
):-

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
2.

 N
on

-In
st

itu
tio

ns
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
a)

 B
od

ie
s 

Co
rp

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

i) 
In

di
an

 
34

20
03

 
N

il 
34

20
03

 
3.

19
 

32
40

00
 

N
il 

32
40

00
 

3.
03

 
(0

.1
6)

 
ii)

 O
ve

rs
ea

s 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
b)

 In
di

vi
du

al
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
i) 

In
di

vi
du

al
 s

ha
re

ho
ld

er
s h

ol
di

ng
 n

om
in

al
 sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l 

up
to

 R
s.

 2
 la

kh
 

35
81

99
7 

N
il 

35
81

99
7 

33
.4

5 
31

97
69

1 
N

il 
31

97
69

1 
29

.8
6 

(3
.5

9)
 

ii)
 In

di
vi

du
al

 sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

 h
ol

di
ng

 n
om

in
al

 s
ha

re
 c

ap
ita

l 
19

14
00

0 
N

il 
19

14
00

0 
17

.8
7 

18
84

00
0 

N
il 

18
84

00
0 

17
.5

9 
(0

.2
8)

 

21



An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t 2
01

9-
20

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

_A
SH

O
KA

 M
ET

CA
ST

 LI
M

IT
ED

 
   in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 R

s 
2 

la
kh

 
c)

 O
th

er
s (

sp
ec

ify
) 

N
RI

/O
CB

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
th

er
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

on
 R

es
id

en
t I

nd
ia

ns
 

12
60

00
 

N
il 

12
60

00
 

1.
18

 
18

00
0 

N
il 

18
00

0 
0.

17
 

(1
.0

1)
 

O
ve

rs
ea

s C
or

po
ra

te
 B

od
ie

s 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
Fo

re
ig

n 
N

at
io

na
ls

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
Cl

ea
rin

g 
M

em
be

rs
 

18
00

0 
N

il 
18

00
0 

0.
17

 
36

30
9 

N
il 

36
30

9 
0.

34
 

0.
17

 
H

in
du

 U
nd

iv
id

ed
 F

am
ily

 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
43

80
00

 
N

il 
43

80
00

 
4.

09
 

4.
09

 
Fo

re
ig

n 
Bo

di
es

 - 
D 

R 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
N

il 
M

ar
ke

t M
ak

er
 

18
00

0 
N

il 
18

00
0 

0.
17

 
10

20
00

 
N

il 
10

20
00

 
0.

95
 

0.
78

 
Su

b-
to

ta
l (

B)
(2

):-
 

60
00

00
0 

N
il 

60
00

00
0 

56
.0

2 
60

00
00

0 
N

il 
60

00
00

0 
56

.0
2 

N
il 

To
ta

l P
ub

lic
 S

ha
re

ho
ld

in
g 

(B
)=

(B
)(1

)+
 (B

)(
2)

 
60

00
00

0 
N

il 
60

00
00

0 
56

.0
2 

60
00

00
0 

N
il 

60
00

00
0 

56
.0

2 
N

il 
C.

 S
ha

re
s 

he
ld

 b
y 

Cu
st

od
ia

n 
fo

r G
D

Rs
 &

 A
D

Rs
 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

N
il 

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 (A
+B

+C
) 

10
71

00
00

 
N

il 
10

71
00

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
71

00
00

 
N

il 
10

71
00

00
 

10
0.

00
 

N
il 

 B)
 

SH
AR

EH
O

LD
IN

G
 O

F 
PR

O
M

O
TE

R
 

Sr
. 

N
o.

 
Sh

ar
eh

ol
de

r’
s N

am
e 

N
o.

 o
f S

ha
re

s 
he

ld
 a

t t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r a
s 

on
 3

1st
 M

ar
ch

, 2
01

9 
N

o.
 o

f S
ha

re
s 

he
ld

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r a
s 

on
 3

1st
 

M
ar

ch
, 2

02
0 

%
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 
sh

ar
eh

ol
di

ng
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

  

  
N

o.
 o

f 
Sh

ar
es

 
%

 o
f t

ot
al

 
Sh

ar
es

 o
f 

th
e 

co
. 

%
 o

f S
ha

re
s P

le
dg

ed
 

/ 
en

cu
m

be
re

d 
to

 
to

ta
l s

ha
re

s 

N
o.

 o
f 

Sh
ar

es
* 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 

Sh
ar

es
 o

f 
th

e 
co

. 

%
 o

f S
ha

re
s P

le
dg

ed
 /

 
en

cu
m

be
re

d 
to

 to
ta

l 
sh

ar
es

 

1 
Sh

al
in

 A
. S

ha
h 

18
55

00
0 

17
.3

2 
N

il 
18

55
00

0 
17

.3
2 

N
il 

N
il 

2 
Sh

al
in

 A
. S

ha
h 

H
U

F 
17

95
00

0 
16

.7
6 

N
il 

17
95

00
0 

16
.7

6 
N

il 
N

il 

3 
Le

sh
a 

Ve
nt

ur
es

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Li

m
ite

d 
(F

or
m

er
ly

 
Le

sh
a 

Ag
ro

 
Fo

od
s 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Li
m

ite
d)

 

10
0 

0.
00

 
N

il 
10

0 
0.

00
 

N
il 

N
il 

4 
As

hn
is

ha
 In

du
st

rie
s 

Li
m

ite
d 

10
0 

0.
00

 
N

il 
10

0 
0.

00
 

N
il 

N
il 

5 
Pa

ya
l S

ha
lin

 S
ha

h 
10

0 
0.

00
 

N
il 

10
0 

0.
00

 
N

il 
N

il 

6 
Le

en
a 

As
ho

k 
Sh

ah
 

55
97

00
 

5.
23

 
N

il 
55

97
00

 
5.

23
 

N
il 

N
il 

7 
As

ho
k 

Ch
in

ub
ha

i S
ha

h 
50

00
00

 
4.

67
 

N
il 

50
00

00
 

4.
67

 
N

il 
N

il 

 

22



 
Annual Report 2019-2020                                            ________________________ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED                               

 

  
C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING (PLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE) 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
During the year 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total shares 
of the company 

1 Mr. Shalin A. Shah  
2 At the beginning of the year 18,55,000 17.32 18,55,000 17.32 
3 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

4 At the end of the year 18,55,000 17.32 18,55,000 17.32 
5 Shalin A Shah HUF  
6 At the beginning of the year 17,95,000 16.76 17,95,000 16.76 
7 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

8 At the end of the year 17,95,000 16.76 17,95,000 16.76 
9 Lesha Ventures Private Limited 

(Formerly Lesha Agro Foods Private 
Limited) 

 

10 At the beginning of the year 100 0.001 100 0.001 
11 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

12 At the end of the year 100 0.001 100 0.001 
13 Ashnisha Industries Limited     
14 At the beginning of the year 100 0.001 100 0.001 
15 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

16 At the end of the year 100 0.001 100 0.001 
17 Payal Shalin Shah     
18 At the beginning of the year 100 0.001 100 0.001 
19 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 
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20 At the end of the year 100 0.001 100 0.001 
21 Leena Ashok Shah     
22 At the beginning of the year 5,59,700 5.23 5,59,700 5.23 
23 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

24 At the end of the year 5,59,700 5.23 5,59,700 5.23 
25 Ashok Chinubhai Shah     
26 At the beginning of the year 5,00,000 4.67 5,00,000 4.67 
27 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

28 At the end of the year 5,00,000 4.67 5,00,000 4.67 
 

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020:  
(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND DRS): 

 
Sr. 
No. 

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning 
of the year 

Increase / 
Decrease 

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year 
No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

1 Chintan   Nimishbhai   
Shah 

324000 3.03 -- -- 324000 3.03 

2 Nimish Shah 300000 2.80 -- -- 300000 2.80 

3 Chandrakant Natubhai 
Chauhan 

288000 2.69 -- -- 288000 2.69 

4 Shivaansh Estates Private 
Limited 

116091 1.08 Increase Market 
Purchase 

162000 1.51 

5 Dhiren Shashikant Bhatt 156000 1.46 -- -- 156000 1.46 

6 Nopea Capital Services 
Private Limited 

138000 1.29 -- -- 138000 1.29 

7 Aryaman Capital Markets 
Limited 

18000 0.17 Increase Market 
Purchase 

102000 0.95 

8 Divyesh Arvindbhai Doshi 66000 0.62 -- -- 66000 0.62 

9 Thota Somanarsaiah 54000 0.50 -- -- 54000 0.50 

10 Hiren Arvind Patel 48000 0.45 -- -- 48000 0.45 
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 E)  SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
Sr. 
No. 

Shareholding of each Directors and 
each Key Managerial Personnel 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company 
1 Mr. Shalin A. Shah  
2 At the beginning of the year 18,55,000 17.32 18,55,000 17.32 
3 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

4 At the end of the year 18,55,000 17.32 18,55,000 17.32 
5 Mr. Ashok C. Shah  
6 At the beginning of the year 5,00,000 4.67 5,00,000 4.67 
7 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

No change 

8 At the end of the year 5,00,000 4.67 5,00,000 4.67 
9 Mrs. Payal Pandya     
10 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil 
11 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

NA 

12 At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil 
13 Ms. Chitra Thaker     
14 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil 
15 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

NA 

16 At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS – 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. 

(in `) 

  

Secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year         

i) Principal Amount Nil 23420000 Nil 23420000 

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil 

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 23420000 Nil 23420000 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year      

* Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil 

* Reduction Nil 21725000 Nil 21725000 
Net Change Nil (21725000) Nil (21725000) 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year         

i) Principal Amount Nil 1695000 Nil 1695000 

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil 

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 1695000 Nil 1695000 
 
 

VI.          REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 
  

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER: 
(` in Lacs) 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ 
Manager 

Total Amount 

   Name of Director Shalin Shah, MD        
 

---- 
1 Gross salary  

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 

NIL NIL 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL 

2 Stock Option NIL NIL 
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL 
4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 
-  others, specify…  

NIL 
NIL 

5 Others, please specify 
1. PF Contribution  
2. Gratuity  Accrued for the year (Payable at 

Retirement/resignation) 
 

NIL 

 

NIL 

  Total (A) 
  

NIL NIL 

 Ceiling as per the Companies Act 2013 
  

 5% 
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B.  REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS                     (` in Lacs) 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors 
Amount                        

Total  
 

1 Independent Directors   
Fee for attending board committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 
Total (1) 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors 
Fee for attending board committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 

  Total (2) 
  Total (B)=(1+2) NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Total Managerial Remuneration NIL 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Companies Act 2013 1% 
 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD                (` in Lacs) 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

    CEO CS 
Bhumika 
Thakkar  

CFO 
K. C.   

Parikh 
* 

Total 

1 Gross salary N.A. 1.2 0.36 1.56 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

 -- -- -- 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  -- -- -- 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

 -- -- -- 
2 Stock Option  -- -- -- 
3 Sweat Equity  -- -- -- 
4 Commission  -- -- -- 
  -  as % of profit  -- -- -- 
  others, specify…  -- -- -- 
5 Others, please specify  -- -- -- 
  Total N.A. 1.2 0.36 1.56 

* Appointed on 24/04/2019 and resigned with effect from 31/07/2019.
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
Type 
 

Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal made, 
if any (give 
Details) 

A. COMPANY 
Penalty 

NONE Punishment 
Compounding 
B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty 

NONE Punishment 
Compounding 
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty 

NONE Punishment 
Compounding 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

 
For and on behalf of the Board 

 
  

Ashok C.Shah 
Director 

DIN: 02467830 

 
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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ANNEXURE-III TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

1. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
 

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the Employees of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 and 

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director/KMP and its 
Designation 

Remuneration 
to the Director / 
KMP for the 
Financial Year 
2019-20 

Percentage increase / 
decrease in 
remuneration in the 
Financial Year 2019-20 

Ratio of Remuneration 
of each Director to the 
Median Remuneration 
of Employees  

1 Mr. Shalin Shah 
(Managing Director) 

Nil Nil N.A. 

2 Mr. Ashok Shah 
(Director) 

Nil Nil N.A. 

3 Mrs. Payal Pandya 
(Independent Director) 

Nil Nil N.A. 

4 Ms. Chitra Thaker 
(Independent Director) 

Nil Nil N.A. 

5 Ms. Bhumika Thakkar 
(Company Secretary) 

1.2 Nil 0.9:1 

6 Ms. K. C.  Parikh 
(Chief Financial Officer) 

0.36 Nil 1.1:1 

 

iii. Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) of the Company is ` 11,000 for the Financial Year 2019-20.  
iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company is two for the year ended 31st March, 

2020. 
v. There was no increase in the remuneration during the year . 

vi. The remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) is in line with the performance of the company. 
vii. The Market Capitalization as on, 31st March, 2020 was ` 187.43 Lacs as compared to ` 486.24 Lacs as on 

31st March, 2019 and Price Earnings Ratio of the Company was -58.33 as on 31st March, 2020 as compared 
to -56.75 as on 31st March, 2019.  

viii. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last Financial Year was Nil. Average percentage increase made in the salary of the managerial personnel in 
the last Financial Year was Nil 

ix. Variable component in remuneration of Directors of the Company—N.A. 
x. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors 

but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year—N.A. 
xi. Affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company—N.A. 

 

2. There were no employees covered under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 
2014 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 

 
 

Ashok C. Shah 
Director 

DIN: 02467830 

 
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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ANNEXURE – IV TO THE DIRCTORS REPORT 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  
The Members,  
Ashoka Metcast Limited 
 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Ashoka Metcast Limited (hereinafter called the Company) (CIN: U70101GJ2009PLC057642) 
having its registered office at 7th Floor, Ashoka Chambers, Mithakhali Six Roads, Ahmedabad-380006. Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Ashoka 
Metcast Limited (the Company) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:  
 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  
 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  
 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  
 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;  

 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period] 

 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 
 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
[Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period] 

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and [Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period] 

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not Applicable 
to the Company during the Audit Period]  
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(i)     Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 

(i)   Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange. 
 

(iii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc.  
 

A) The Company has maintained a Register of Directors’ Attendance as prescribed in the Secretarial Standards. 
 

B) The Directors have signed against their respective names after the meeting has been held. 
 

C) The Company had received no proxy forms for the Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2019. 

 

D) The Company has complied with requirements of at least one-third of the total number of directors as 
independent directors as stated in Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 

E) The Company has complied with the of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

F) The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; 
 

G) There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year under review under 
the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under 
these Acts against / on the Company, its Directors and Officers. 

 

I further report that 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors.  
 

During the year under review the Company had not complied with the provisions of the section 203 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for appointment of Chief Financial Officer.  
 

As explained by the Management, the Company had already appointed Mr. Shalin A. Shah as Managing Director 
and Ms. Bhumika Thakkar as Company Secretary to comply with the provision of section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The Company was looking for the suitable candidate to be appointed as CFO, and the Management had 
appointed Ms. K. C.  Parikh as CFO with effect from 24/04/2019 although she resigned with effect from 
31/07/2019. Mr. Subha Ranjan Dash has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company in the Board 
Meeting held on 09/06/2020. 
 

The Company had complied with all provisions of the section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, except non charging 
of interest as per section 186(7) in respect of some of the loans granted by the Company. 
 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.  
 

The following mentioned observations are made: 
 

A) The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts 
and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other companies and interests in other entities; 
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B) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, 
their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and ethics for Directors and 
Management Personnel; 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has no major / specific events, actions having a major 
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, 
etc. referred to above viz. 
 

i. Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity etc.  
ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities  

iii. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc.  
iv. Foreign technical collaborations. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

 

  
Chintan K. Patel 

Practicing Company Secretary 
UDIN: A031987B000662254 

Mem. No.: A31987, COP No.:  11959 
 

ANNEXURE - A to the Secretarial Audit Report 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Ashoka Metcast Limited 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

 

1.  The Management of the company is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records, devise proper system 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems 
are adequate and operate effectively. 

2.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records and procedures followed by the 
company with respect to Secretarial Compliances. 

3.  We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

4.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company. 

5.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

6.  The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

7.  The secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

   
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

 

  
Chintan K. Patel 

Practicing Company Secretary 
Mem. No.: A31987 

COP No.:  11959 
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ANNEXURE – V TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 

NON APPLICABILITY OF SUBMISSION OF REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER EXEMPTION GIVEN IN 
REGULATION 15 (2) (b) OF CHAPTER IV OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015 

To the Members of the ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED 

This is to certify that the equity shares of the Company are listed on Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) Platform of 
BSE Limited and hence, as per Regulation 15 (2) (b) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, compliance with the corporate governance provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is exempt to the Company.  

Therefore it is not required to submit Report on Corporate Governance. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 

  
Shalin A. Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Ashoka Metcast Limited 
Ahmedabad. 

We hereby certify that: 

i. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Financial Year 2019-20 and 
that to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 
 

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
ii. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violated of the Company's code of conduct. 
 

iii. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we hereby disclose to the Auditors and 
the Audit Committee that there have been no inefficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, 
prevailing in the company. 
 

iv. We hereby certify that : 
 

a. There have been no significant changes in internal control during the year. 
b. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and 
c. No instances of fraud were observed in the Company by the management or an employee having a 

significant role in the company's internal control system. 
 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 4, 2020 

 

 

 
Subha Ranjan Dash 

CFO 

For and on behalf of the Board 

  
Shalin A. Shah  

 Managing Director 
DIN: 00297447 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
Ashoka Metcast Limited
(Formerly Known as: Tanya Estates Private Limited )

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ashoka Metcast Limited (‘the 
Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement of profit and loss, cash 
flow statement and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and  Loss and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report:

The Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

During the year, the Company has granted an 
interest free loan to its wholly owned subsidiary. 
We consider granting loan to Subsidiaries as 
a key audit matter as it constitutes significant 
percentage of loan given.

We have verified the relevant records and found in 
accordance with company’s policy. Based on the above 
procedure and, in our opinion the management’s 
determination is considered to be reasonable.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Other disclosures forming part of the standalone Financial Statements, which describes 
the uncertainties and the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations and results as assessed 
by the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of Standalone financial statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
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is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the entity has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or 
business activities within the company to express an opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of 
such entities.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” 
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 

2. 	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our     
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b)	 in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c)	 the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e)	 on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure B”; and 
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(g)	 with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii.	 The Company is not required to make provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts as the company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There were no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv.	 The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company 
for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(h)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16): In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has 
been paid by the Company to its directors during the current year and is in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the 
limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed 
other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

FOR, SUNIL PODDAR & CO..
(Chartered Accountants)
 Firm Reg. No 110603W

Date  : 30th July, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad
UDIN :20443450AAAALO8628

CA PANKAJ AGARWAL
Partner

M. No. 443450
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, we report that: 

(i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) 	 The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed 
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. In accordance with 
this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. 

(c)	 There are no immovable property held by the Company which requires registration. Hence 
reporting under the said clause of the order is not applicable to the company. 

(ii)	 (a)	 The stock of Inventories has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals 
commensurate with size and nature of the business.

(b) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures for 
physical verification of Inventories followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the company and the nature of business.

(c)	 The company has maintained reasonable records for Inventories lying at its premises and the 
discrepancies noticed during the verification have been properly dealt for in books of accounts.

(iii)	 The company has granted unsecured loans to the companies, firm or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of parties and amount involved 
in the transaction are below:

	 Total No. of Parties :1
	 Balance outstanding as on 31/03/2020 :Rs. 9,51,35,000 /- 

(a)	 As per the information and records made available to us, the rate of interest and other terms and 
conditions of loan granted by the Company are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the 
company, since the loan has been granted to wholly owned subsidiary.

 (b) 	 In respect of aforesaid loans granted, whether the amount (principal as well as interest) has been 
repaid / paid regularly or not, cannot be commented upon as there is no stipulation as regards to 
the repayment / payment of the amount

(c)	 In respect of aforesaid loans granted, whether the amount (principal as well as interest) is overdue 
or not, cannot be commented upon as there is no stipulation as regards to the repayment / 
payment of the amount

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made 
except section 186(7) of the companies act. Details of the same are as under:

	 Total no. of parties :4
	 Balance outstanding as on 31.03.2020 :Rs. 10,83,31,000

(v)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act  
and the Companies (Acceptance of  Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the 
public are not applicable.

(vi)	 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the 
Act, for any of the goods or services rendered by the Company. 
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(vii)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of 
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of 
customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during 
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not 
have any dues on account of employees’ state insurance and duty of excise. 

	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable. 

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income 
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax which have not been 
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The company has not taken any loan either from financial 
institutions or from the Government and has not issued any debentures.

(ix)	 The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed 
or reported during the course of our audit. 

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its directors during the year, 
therefore the same is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

(xii)	  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the 
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) 	According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

(xv) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) 	The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

FOR, SUNIL PODDAR & CO..
(Chartered Accountants)
 Firm Reg. No 110603W

Date  : 30th July, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad
UDIN :20443450AAAALO8628

CA PANKAJ AGARWAL
Partner

M. No. 443450
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Annexure - B to Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statement of the 
Ashoka Metcast Limited (“the Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ashoka Metcast Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by 
the ICAI.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
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(1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and

(3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

FOR, SUNIL PODDAR & CO..
(Chartered Accountants)
 Firm Reg. No 110603W

Date  : 30th July, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad
UDIN :20443450AAAALO8628

CA PANKAJ AGARWAL
Partner

M. No. 443450
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AUDITED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020
Particulars Note 

No
 As at 

 31st March, 
2020

 As at 
 31st March, 

2019
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital 2  107,100,000  107,100,000 
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3  105,783,004  105,820,011 

2 Share application pending for allotment  -    -   
3 Non Current Liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 4  1,695,000  23,420,000 
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  -    -   
(c) Other Non Current Liabilities 5  28,207,000  28,207,000 

4 Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term Borrowings  -    -   
(b) Trade Payable 6

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises
total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 3,934,760  -   

(c) Other Current Liabilities 7  259,277  279,486 
TOTAL RS...  246,979,041  264,826,499 

II. ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets

(a) Property plant and Equipment 8
(i)	 Tangible Assets  2,408,842  2,708,823 

(b) Non Current Investments 9  86,100,000  86,100,000 
Long Term loans and advances 10  108,331,000  106,601,000 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 11  421,103  27,995 
(d) Other Non Current Assets 12  2,618,992  3,920,865 

2 Current Assets
(a) Short Term Loans and Advances
(b) Trade Receivables 13  45,065,154  57,498,112 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalent 14  1,189,793  6,826,839 
(d) Other Current Assets 15  844,156  1,142,865 

TOTAL RS...  246,979,041  264,826,499 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 1
Notes referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALO8628

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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AUDITED  STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31st March, 

2020 

 As at 
31st March, 

2019
I. INCOME

Revenue from operations (Net) 16  19,768,650  -   
II Other Income 17  15,324  2,392,052 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  19,783,974  2,392,052 
IV Expenses

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 18  17,239,200  -   
Employee Benefits Expense 19  276,000  737,455 
Finance Costs 20  1,465  5,815 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21  299,981  239,200 
Other Expenses 22  2,397,443  2,214,553 
Total Expenses  20,214,089  3,197,023 

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional & extraordinary 
items and Tax (III-IV)

 (430,115)  (804,972)

VI Exceptional items  -    -   
VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax [V-VI]  (430,115)  (804,972)
VIII Extraordinary Items
IX Profit before Tax (VII - VIII)  (430,115)  (804,972)
X Tax Expense :

(1)     Current Tax
(2)     Deferred Tax (Expense)/Revenue  (108,260)  30,643 
(3)     Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -   

XI  Profit for the period from continuing operations  (321,855)  (835,615)
XII  Profit from discontinuing operation  -    -   
XIII  Tax Expense of discontinuing operations  -    -   
XIV  Profit from discontinuing operations after tax  -    -   
XV Profit for the period [XI+XIV]  (321,855)  (835,615)
XVI Earning Per Share:

- Basic  (0.03)  (0.08)
- Diluted  (0.03)  (0.08)

Notes referred to above and notes attached there to form 
an integral part of Profit & Loss Statement

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALO8628

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2020
PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19
A.	 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
	 Net Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account  (430,115)  (804,972)
	 Adjustment for :
	 Depreciation  299,981  239,200 
	 Dividend income
	 Short Term Capital Loss  -   
	 Profit from Sale of Investment  -    (2,376,534)
	 Preliminary Expenses Written Off  1,301,873  1,601,854  1,301,873  (835,460)
	 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  1,171,738  (1,640,432)
	 Working Capital Changes
	 Adjustment for 
		  Trade Receivables  12,432,958  19,455,000 
		  Other current Assets  298,709  (21,604,490)
		  Other Current Liabilities  (20,209)  35,926 
		  Non Current Liabilities  -   
		  Trade Payable & Other Liabilities  3,934,760 
	 Net Changes in Working Capital  16,646,218  (2,113,564)
	 Cash Generated from operations  17,817,956  (3,753,996)
	 Cash Flow from Exceptional Claim  -   
	� Direct Tax Paid During the Year
	 (Net off Refund Received)

 -   

	 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  17,817,956  (3,753,996)
B.	 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  :
	 Dividend Income  -    -   
	 Investment in Liquid Assets  -   
	 Proceeds From Liquid Assets  72,376,534 
	 Other Investments  (1,730,000)
	 Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment  (2,428,922)
	 NET CASH FLOW FROM  IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (1,730,000)  69,947,612 
C.	 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  :
	 Issue of Share Capital  -   
	 Securities Premium Received  -   
	 Proceed from Unsecured Loan  -   
	 Payment of Unsecured Loan  (21,725,000)  (7,090,000)
	 Share Issue Expense  -   
	 Receipt from Short Term Loans  -   
	 Payment of Short Term Loans  -    (56,453,000)
	 BSE Deposits Refunded/Made  1,200,000 
	 NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (21,725,000)  (62,343,000)
	� NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS
 (5,637,044)  3,850,616 

	� CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING 
OF THE YEAR

 6,826,839  2,976,223 

	� CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE CLOSE OF 
THE YEAR

 1,189,793  6,826,839 

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALO8628

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

NOTE: 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CORPORATE INFORMATION 
ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED was incorporated on 29/07/2009. Formerly known as Tanya Estates Private 
Limited was converted into Ashoka Metcast Private Limited and then further into Ashoka Metcast Ltd. The 
Company has been promoted by Mr. Shalin Shah.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these Standalone Financial 
Statements to comply in all material respects, with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 
convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of standalone financial statements are consistent with 
those of previous year except for the change in accounting policy, if any explained below.

(i)	 Basis for Accounting
	 The standalone financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual 

basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, Accounting 
Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions thereof 
except those specified otherwise.

(ii)	 Use of Estimates and Judgments
	 In preparation of the standalone financial statements, the Company is required to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

	 The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods 
affected. Significant judgments and estimates about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities include 
useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, impairment of tangible assets, intangible assets including 
goodwill, investments, employee benefits and other provisions and recoverability of deferred tax assets.

(iii)	 Valuation Of Inventories:
	 The cost of inventory is determined on Weighted Average cost formula method on relevant categories 

of inventories on a consistent basis after providing for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories 
wherever necessary.

	 The cost of inventory consists of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and cost incurred in bringing the 
inventory to their present location and condition.

	 Inventories have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, no stock is held by the 
company as on balance sheet date.

(iv)	 Revenue Recognition:
	 All known income and expenditure quantifiable till the date of finalization of accounts are accounted on 

accrual basis when virtual certainty is established.

	 a)	 Revenue from Operation:
	 Sales revenue is recognized when property in the goods with all risk rewards and effective control 

of goods usually associated with ownership are transferred to buyer at price. Sales comprise 
trading sales and are exclusive of excise duty and local taxes and sales return.
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	 The various Discounts and rate differences on the Sales those accepted/rejected are accounted 
in the year, however if the same is of material amount effecting the current year profit/loss are 
separately shown under the Prior Period head of the profit and loss account.

	 b)	 Other operational revenue 
	 Other operational revenue represent income earned from the activities incidental to the business 

and is recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the 
contract.

	 c)	 Other Income:
	 Interest income is recorded at accrued or due whichever is earlier at applicable interest rate and 

other items of other income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.

(v)	 Tangible Assets:
	 a)	 Tangible Fixed Assets:

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, expenditure incurred in the 
course of construction or acquisition, administrative and other general overhead expenses that 
are directly attributable to the cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the purpose of 
use for the business.

	 b)	 Base of measurement followed by the Company is “Cost Model.”
(vi)	 Intangible Assets:
	 Intangible Assets are recorded at acquisition cost when the asset is identifiable, non- monetary in nature, 

without physical substance and it is probable that such expenditure is to result in future economic 
benefits to the entity.

(vii)	 Depreciation:
	 Freehold land is not depreciated. Other items of the tangible assets are depreciated over the useful 

life of the assets prescribed in the Part C of the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The value of 
the asset for depreciation over the period is considered reducing the determined residual value of the 
asset not more than 5% of the asset.Residual value for building has been considered at 5%. In respect 
of other assets residual value has been taken at NIL rate. For the purpose of calculation of Depreciation, 
the method followed by company is Straight Line Method (SLM). The depreciation is provided from the 
date of the asset ready to use for the commercial operations. The useful lives taken for the purpose of 
depreciation of different assets are prescribed as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Electric Installation 10 years

(viii)	 Consolidated Financial Statement
	 As per the requirement and rules of the consolidated financial statement, the company will follow the 

same for the preparation of consolidated financial Statement as and when it is required.

(ix)	 Investment in Associates in Consolidated financial Statement:
	 As per the requirement and rules of the consolidated financial statement, the company will follow the 

same for the preparation of consolidated financial Statement.

(x)	 Leases:
	 Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the Company has substantially 

all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance lease. Such a lease is capitalized at the 
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inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of the minimum lease payments and 
a liability is recognized for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability 
and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for 
each year.

	 Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest 
with the lessor, are recognized as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis.

(xi)	 Government Grants:
a)	 Government grants of the nature of contribution towards capital expenditure (to the extent utilized 

in the year) are treated as of Capital Fund.

b)	 Government grants for meeting the revenue expenditure are treated as income of the year in 
which they are realized, except that they will be treated as accrued income where sanctions have 
been issued before the last day of the year and there is reasonable certainty of collection and 
realization.

c)	 Unutilized government grants are treated as funds to be carried forward and refunded, as per 
government directions and exhibited as a Liability.

(xii)	 Foreign currency transaction:
a)	 Transaction denominated in foreign currencies is normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing 

at the time of the transaction.

b)	 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at yearend rates. In 
case of monetary items which are covered by forward exchange contract, the difference between 
the yearend rate and rate on the date of contract is recognized as exchange difference and the 
premium paid on forward contract has been recognized over the life of the contract if the forward 
contract is entered.

c)	 Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation 
at the year-end rate is recognized in the profit and loss account except for such adjustment of 
exchange difference arising on long term foreign currency monetary items in so far they are 
relatable to the acquisition of a depreciable capital assets which are adjusted to the cost of assets 
and depreciated over the remaining useful life of such assets.

d)	 The premium or discount on the Forward Exchange Contract entered into hedge foreign currency 
risk of an existing asset/liability is recognized / amortized as an income/expense over the life of the 
contract in the statement of profit and loss account for the trade transaction and capitalized to the 
asset in case the same is capital expenditure.

(xiii)	 Cash Flow Statement:
	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 

of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts 
or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash 
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(xiv)	 Impairment of Tangible and intangible assets:
	 The Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an 

indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value 
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s net selling 
price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows expected to arise from the 
continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal.

	 An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased 
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
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would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment 
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

	 As per Accounting Standard(AS-28) impairment of assets the company has carried the impairment test 
during the year. Resultant it is found that there is no material impairment loss in the carried cost in the 
assets in the books. The recoverable amount is not material, lower than the carrying amount in the 
accounts hence the same is not considered.

(xv)	 Investment:
	 All the investment held by the company is long term investments. The investments are valued at   their 

cost of acquisition plus incidental expenses for the acquisition if any incurred, irrespective of any 
diminution in the value of investments. Provisions for diminution in the value of long-term investments 
are made only if such decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

(xvi)	 Provisions and Contingent liabilities:
	 Provisions are recognized when the present obligation of the past event gives rise to a probable outflow 

embodying economic benefits on settlement, and the amount of obligation can be reliably estimated.
	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed after careful evaluation of facts and legal aspects of the matter 

involved.
	 Provisions and contingent liability are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the 

current best estimates.

(xvii)	Provision for Current and Deferred Tax:
	 Taxes on income are computed using Tax Deferral Assets or Liability method where taxes accrue in the 

same period, the respective revenue and expenses arises. The differences that result between the profit 
offered for income tax and the profit as per standalone financial statements are identified and Deferred 
Tax Liability is recognized for timing difference, that originate in one accounting period and reverse in 
another based on the tax effect of the prevailing enacted regulation in force.

	 Deferred Tax Assets are recognized subject to prudence, only, if there is reasonable certainty that they 
will be realized and are subject to appropriate reviews at each balance sheet date for the purpose 
of measurement of Deferred Tax Liability or Assets, the applicable tax rates and enacted regulations 
expected to apply in the year in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled 
are applied.

	 Minimum Alternative Tax Credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the company will pay Taxes on Taxable Income furnishing the specified period. In the 
year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
the said asset is created by way of credit to the profit and loss statement and shown as MAT Credit 
entitlement.

	 For current year, the Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, 
the Company has recognized provision for taxation and re-measured its deferred tax liabilities basis the 
rate prescribed in the said Section. The impact of such change has been recognized over the year ended 
March 31, 2020 since the Company has used effective tax rate for full financial year.

(xviii) Borrowing Cost:
	 Borrowing cost directly attributable and/or funds borrowed generally and used for the purpose of 

acquisition/construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use are capitalized, at its capitalization rate to expenditure on that assets, for the period, until 
all activities necessary to prepare qualifying assets for its intended use are complete. All other borrowing 
costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

(xix)	 Retirement Benefits:
	 Company does not have any defined benefit plan. The company does not permit accumulating of unused 

leaves. The company does not provide any long-term employee benefits.
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(xx)	 Sundry Debtors:
	 No provision has been made for the bad and doubtful debts. The bad debts are charged to revenue in 

the year of, as and when they arise.

(xxi)	 Earnings Per Share:
	 Basic Earnings Per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

	 For the purpose of calculation of Diluted Earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential shares

(xxii)	Cash & Cash Equivalents:
	 Cash and cash equivalents for the propose of cash flow statement comprise of cash in hand, cash at 

bank, fixed deposit, margin money deposit and short-term deposit in bank with original maturity of 12 
months or less.

(xxiii) Segment Reporting
	 (a)	 Primary Segment Reporting (Business Segment):

	 During the year company is in 2 business segments that is trading of goods and trading of steel, 
hence the reporting on the primary business segment in pursuance to Accounting Standard No.17 
issued by ICAI has been disclosed in “Disclosure to the Standalone Financial Statement”.

	 (b)	 Secondary Reporting (Geographical Segment) :
	 Geographical environment in which company operates does not materially differ considering 

the political and economic environment, the type of customers, assets employed and the risk 
associated in respect of each of the geographical area.Hence the reporting on the secondary 
business segment in pursuance to accounting Standard No. 17 issued by ICAl is not applicable.

DISCLOSURE TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2020:
(i)	 Accounting for Taxes on Income:

(a)	 Deferred tax assets/liabilities Charges/credit during the year has been given in Note to financial 
statements.

(b)	 The provision of current taxes has been made in the accounts as the taxable income computed as 
per Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ii)	 Related Party Disclosures:

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year are as follows:

Name of the person Relation with the Company

Lesha Industries Ltd. Enterprise significantly influenced by KMP.

Rhetan Rolling Mills Pvt. Ltd. Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

Vivanza Bioscience Ltd. Associate Company

Shalin Shah Director

Ashok Shah Director

Bhumika Thakkar Company Secretary

K.C. Parikh (from 24/04/2019 to 31/07/2019) Key Managerial Personnel
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	 	 Transactions with the Related parties

	 The transactions entered during the year along with nature and volumes of transactions are 
tabulated as below and the same are at length’s price.

Sl. Nature of Transactions Current Year Previous Year
1 Remuneration 156000 -
2 Loan Taken 1535000 -
3 Loan Repaid 23260000 7090000
4 Rent Expense 154000 142378
5 Reimbursement of expense 23364 -
6 Loan Given 9950000 64660000

(iii)	 Foreign currency transactions
	 a)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.

	 b)	 Transactions and balances
	 During the year, company has not entered into foreign currency transaction.

(iv)	 Segmentation Reporting:
	 (a)	 Primary Segment Reporting (Business Segment):

	 The reporting on the primary business segment in pursuance to Accounting Standard No.17 issued 
by ICAI has been made as under:

Segment – Wise Revenue, Results and Capital Employed
Particulars Year  Ended  

31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Audited Audited

1.	 Segment Revenue   
	 (a)	 Steel 42.01 0.00
	 (b)	 Trading of  Goods 155.68 0.00
	 (c)	 Others 0.00 0.00
Total 197.69 0.00 
Less: Inter Segment Revenue - - 
Net sales/Income From Operations 197.69 0.00
2.	 Segment Results   
	 (a)	 Steel 0.19 0.00
	 (b)	 Trading of  Goods 25.11 0.00
	 (c)	 Others 0.15 23.92
Total 25.45 23.92 
Less: (i)	 Other Un-allocable
		  Expenditure net off (29.75) (31.97)
Total Profit Before Tax (4.30) (8.05)
3.	 Capital Employed
	 (Segment assets – Segment Liabilities)  
	 (a)	 Steel Operation 367.20 574.98
	 (b)	 Trading of  Goods 44.11 0.00
	 (c)	 Other Unallocable items 1717.53 1554.22
Total 2128.83 2129.20
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(v)	 Impact of Global Health Pandemic (COVID -19) on Company’s Operations
	 Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the nationwide lockdown was imposed from23rd March, 2020 which 

was further extended by various announcements made by theCentral and State Government around 
the time. Manufacturing facility of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary was shut down during 
the lockdown period asthe Company and its Subsidiary were not part of Government denominated 
indispensable services. Subsidiary’s manufacturing plant has resumed operations fromMay 10, 2020 
and the Company started its operations from May 18, 2020. The Company has made assessment of its 
liquidity position for the financial year 2020-21and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets 
comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right of use assets, investments, inventory 
andtrade receivables. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects 
to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The situation ischanging rapidly giving rise to inherent 
uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be 
different from thatestimated as on balance sheet date. 

(vi)	 Earnings Per Share:

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Profit Available to Equity Share Holders (A) (3,21,855) (8,35,615)

Number of Equity Share at the beginning 1,07,10,000 1,07,10,000

Shares allotted  during the year by way of bonus - -

Proportionate No. of Equity Shares (B) 1,07,10,000 1,07,10,000

Basic Earnings Per Share (A/B) (0.03) (0.08)

Potential Earnings  (C ) (3,21,855) (8,35,615)

Potential No. of Equity Shares (D) 1,07,10,000 1,07,10,000

Diluted Earnings Per share (C/D) (0.03) (0.08)

(vii)	 Ashoka Metcast has given corporate guarantee on behalf of Rhetan Rolling Mills Pvt. Ltd. (a wholly 
owned subsidiary) to Punjab National Bank. 

(viii)	 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged as and when required to bring uniformity in 
comparison with current year figures.

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALO8628

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note - 2 : SHARE CAPITAL
	Sr. No.	 Particulars	 As at	 As at	
				    31st March, 2020	 31st March, 2019

	 1.	 AUTHORISED EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
		  -	 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each	  11,00,00,000.00 	  11,00,00,000.00 

	 2.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
		  1,07,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid.	  10,71,00,000.00 	  10,71,00,000.00 

				     10,71,00,000.00 	  10,71,00,000.00 

	 3.	 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting year
		
		  Particulars 	 As at 31st March, 2020	 As at 31st March, 2019
		  (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)	 No. of 	  Value  	 No. of 	  Value		
				    Share	 Rs.	 Share	 Rs.				
		  - At the beginning of the year	   1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00 	 1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00		
		  - Movement during the period	  -   	  -   	 -  	 -  
		  - Outstanding at the end of the period 	  1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00 	  1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00		

	 4.	 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
		
		  Name of the Shareholders	 As at 31st March, 2020	 As at 31st March, 2019
		  (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)	 No. of 	 % of 	 No. of 	 % of 
				    Share held	 Holding	 Share held	 Holding		
		  Shalin A. Shah	  18,55,000 	 17.32%	  18,55,000 	 17.32%
		  Leena A. Shah	  5,59,700 	 5.23%	  5,59,700 	 5.23%
		  Shalin A. Shah HUF	  17,95,000 	 16.76%	  17,95,000 	 16.76%		  .

	 The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Ordinary Shares having par value of Rs.10/- per 
share. Each holder of ordinary share is entitled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. 
In the event of liquidation, the ordinary shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company after payment of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.	

	 No Ordinary Shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for 
the sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

	 No Ordinary Shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of 5 years preceding 
the date as at which the Balance sheet is prepared.

Note - 3	  : RESERVES & SURPLUS

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

(a) Securities Premium Reserve  10,70,00,000  10,70,00,000 

(b) Profit & Loss Account

Balance brought forward from previous year  (11,79,989)  (3,44,374)

Add: Profit for the period  (3,21,855)  (8,35,615)

Add  DTL / DTA Adjusted for Previous years  2,84,848  -   

Surplus  in the statement of Profit & Loss Account  (12,16,996)  (11,79,989)

TOTAL  10,57,83,004  10,58,20,011 
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Note  - 4 : LONG TERM BORROWING

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Unsecured

Loans & advances from related parties  16,95,000  2,34,20,000 

TOTAL  16,95,000  2,34,20,000 

Note  - 5 : OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Unsecured

Advance received for long term contracts  2,82,07,000  2,82,07,000 

TOTAL  2,82,07,000  2,82,07,000 

Note  - 6 : TRADE PAYABLES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Sundry Payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises  -    -   

Dues to Others  39,34,760  -   

TOTAL  39,34,760  -   
Note:-
The Company do not have the details of MSME status of their creditors. Hence the company is unable to 
separate dues to SME and non SME and henceforth they have disclosed all the credtiors under the status of 
non SME.	

Note  - 7 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Other Payables

Duties and Taxes  2,353  2,79,486 

Unpaid Expenses  77,622  -   

Creditors for Expenses

- Dues to micro and small enterprises

- Dues to Others  1,79,302  -   

TOTAL  2,59,277  2,79,486 
Note:-
The Company do not have the details of MSME status of their creditors. Hence the company is unable to 
separate dues to SME and non SME and henceforth they have disclosed all the credtiors under the status of 
non SME.	
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NOTE - 8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
NO. NAME OF THE 

ASSET
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at
01.04.2019

Additions Deduction As at
31.03.2020

As at
01.04.2019

Additions Deduction Up to
31.03.2020

As at
31.03.2020

As at
31.03.2019

A)
 

Tangible 
Assets
Office 
Equipment

 3,07,532  -    -    3,07,532  42,338  53,609  -    95,947  2,11,585  2,65,194 

Furniture & 
Fixtures

 23,35,751  -    -    23,35,751  1,48,336  2,07,743  -    3,56,080  19,79,672  21,87,415 

Computer  1,26,722  -    -    1,26,722  67,711  19,781  -    87,492  39,231  59,011 
Electric 
Installations

 2,08,351  -    -    2,08,351  11,149  18,847  -    29,996  1,78,355  1,97,202 

 Total  29,78,356  -    -    29,78,356  2,69,533  2,99,981  -    5,69,514  24,08,842  27,08,823 
Previous 
years

 5,49,433  24,28,923  -    29,78,356  30,333  2,39,200  -    2,69,533  27,08,823  5,19,100 

Note  - 9 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

S.I. Particulars No. of shares  
31st March , 2020

 No. of shares 
31st March , 2019

 As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Investment in Equity Shares 
(Non Trade)

(i) Quoted
Others
Lesha Industries Ltd 6,19,490 61,949  35,91,568  35,91,568 
Gujarat Natural Resources Ltd. 3,50,000 3,50,000  23,90,850  23,90,850 
Mena Mani Industries Ltd 12,50,000 12,50,000  2,50,00,000  2,50,00,000 

Ashnisha Industries Limited 1,65,197 1,65,197  56,17,582  56,17,582 

In Related Parties (Associate)

Vivanza Biosciences Limited 9,50,000 9,50,000  95,00,000  95,00,000 

(ii) Non Quoted

In Related Parties (Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary)
Rhetan Rolling Mills Pvt Ltd 4,00,000 4,00,000  4,00,00,000  4,00,00,000 

TOTAL  8,61,00,000  8,61,00,000 

Market value of Quoted 
Investment

 2,62,74,377  4,28,18,991 

Book Value of Unquoted 
Investments

 4,00,00,000  4,00,00,000 

Note  - 10 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Unsecured

Loans and advances to related parties  9,51,35,000  8,51,85,000 

Others loans and advances  1,31,96,000  2,14,16,000 

TOTAL  10,83,31,000  10,66,01,000 
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Note  - 11: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/( DEFERRED TAX ASSETS )

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Opening Balance  27,995  58,638 

Add/(Less) : On account of timing difference  (5,822)  (30,643)

Add/(Less) : On account of current year losses  1,14,082  -   

Add / (Less) : Earlier Year DTA adjustment  2,84,848  -   

Closing balance  4,21,103  27,995 
Deferred tax is recognized only on  timing difference between the accounting income and taxable income, 
which are capable of reversal in subsequent periods.

Deferred assets on carried forward business loss and unabsorbed depreciation is recognized only if 
management certifies with virtual certainity & convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable 
income.

Value of deferred tax is assessed on each balance Sheet date and any change in value is recognized in the 
profit & loss appropriation account.

Note  - 12 : OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Others

MAT Credit Entitlement  15,244  15,244 

Preliminery Expense not written off  5,81,520  8,72,280 

Public Issue expense not written off  20,22,229  30,33,341 

 26,18,992  39,20,865 

Note  - 13 :  TRADE RECEIVABLES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from  
its due date

Unsecured, Considered Good :  3,66,98,112  5,74,98,112 

Others

Unsecured, Considered Good :  83,67,042  -   

TOTAL  4,50,65,154  5,74,98,112 

Note  - 14 :    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Balances with Banks

 - In Current Account  10,71,106  67,54,148 

Cash on hand  1,18,687  72,690 

TOTAL  11,89,793  68,26,838 
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Note  - 15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
Balance with Revenue Authorities (GST Credit)  8,41,156  11,42,865 
Others
Preliminery Expense not written off
Public Issue Expense (IPO) not written off
Advance for expenses  3,000  -   
TOTAL  8,44,156  11,42,865 

Note  - 16 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
Sale of Products  1,97,68,650  -   
TOTAL  1,97,68,650  -   

Note  - 17 : OTHER INCOME
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
Short term gain on sale of Mutual Fund  -    23,76,534 
Miscellaneous Income  15,324  15,518 
TOTAL  15,324  23,92,052 

Note  - 18: PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
Purchase of stock in trade  1,72,39,200  -   
TOTAL  1,72,39,200  -   

Note  - 19: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Salaries, Bonus & Allowances  2,76,000  7,37,455 
TOTAL  2,76,000  7,37,455 

Note  - 20 : FINANCE COST
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
Bank Charges  1,465  5,815 
TOTAL  1,465  5,815 

Note  - 21: DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Depreciation  2,99,981  2,39,200 
TOTAL  2,99,981  2,39,200 
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Note  - 22 :    OTHER EXPENSES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Audit Fees  40,000  40,000 

Legal & Professional Expense  7,500  7,500 

Public Issue Expense W/off  10,11,113  10,11,113 

Preliminary Expense written off  2,90,760  2,90,760 

Demat Charges  -    679 

E-Voting Expenses  21,000  -   

Roc Fees  16,200  2,400 

Rent Expense  1,30,504  1,42,372 

Miscelleneous Expense  -    3,47,139 

Advertising Expesnes  25,450  12,825 

Market Making Fees expense  4,80,000  -   

Share Transfer Exp  34,029  -   

Office exp  39,324  1,14,218 

Annual Listing Fees  94,200  89,699 

Repair and Maintenance  23,566  38,663 

Electricity exp  1,80,030  91,010 

Conveyance Exp  3,768  26,175 
TOTAL  23,97,443  22,14,553 

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALO8628

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS OF ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2020, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated cash flows Statement 
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Actand other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the group 
and its associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of theconsolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report:

The Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

During the year, the Company has granted an 
interest free loan to its wholly owned subsidiary. 
We consider granting loan to Subsidiaries as 
a key audit matter as it constitutes significant 
percentage of loan given.

We have verified the relevant records and found in 
accordance with company’s policy. Based on the above 
procedure and, in our opinion the management’s 
determination is considered to be reasonable.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Other disclosures forming part of the consolidated Financial Statements, which describes 
the uncertainties and the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Group’s operations and results as assessed by 
the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not includethe consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information ismaterially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for theConsolidatedFinancial Statements 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of theseConsolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows of the group and its associate in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidatedfinancial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its 
associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance of the companies includedin the Group and of its associate are also 
responsible foroverseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhether the consolidated financial statements as 
awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includesour opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurancebut is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordancewith SAs will always detect a material misstatement when itexists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and areconsidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, theycould reasonably 
be expected to influence the economicdecisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerciseprofessional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption .If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of theconsolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information ofHolding company or 
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statement 
of which we are independent auditors. For the other entitiesincluded in the consolidated financial 
statements,which have been audited by other auditors, such otherauditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervisionand performance of the audits carried out by them. Weremain solely responsible 
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of theHolding Company and such other entities 
included in theconsolidated financial statements of which we are theindependent auditors regarding, among 
other matters, theplanned scope and timing of the audit and significant auditfindings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal controlthat we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with astatement that we have complied with relevant 
ethicalrequirements regarding independence, and to communicatewith them allrelationships and other 
matters that mayreasonably be thought to bear on our independence, andwhere applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged withgovernance, we determine those matters that were 
of mostsignificance in the audit of the consolidated financialstatements for the financial year ended March 
31, 2020 andare therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludespublic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely are circumstances, we 
determine that a matter shouldnot be communicated in our report because the adverseconsequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected tooutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of net loss amounting Rs. 4.84 lakh for 
the year ended 31st March, 2020, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of 
one associate, whose financial statements have been audited by other auditor and whose report have been 
furnished to us by the Management.Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the 
reportof such auditor.
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considerations of report of other 

auditor on separate financial statements of associate as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, 
to the extent applicable, that:
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(a)	 We/ Other auditor have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

(b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books and report of another auditor; 

(c)	 The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss andthe consolidated 
cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidatedfinancial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e)	 on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding company as 
on 31 March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of holding company and report of 
statutory auditor of associate, none of the directors of group and associate is disqualified as on 31 
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
holding company,its wholly owned subsidiary and associate and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and 

(g)	 with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Group and its associatedoes not have any pending litigations which would impact their 
financial position.

ii.	 The Group and its associateis not required to make provision, as required under the applicable 
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts as the Group did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There were no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Group and its associate. 

iv.	 The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Group 
and its associate for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(h)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16): In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under 
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under 
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

FOR, SUNIL PODDAR & CO..
(Chartered Accountants)
 Firm Reg. No 110603W

Date  : 30th July, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad
UDIN :20443450AAAALP6046

CA PANKAJ AGARWAL
Partner

M. No. 443450
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Annexure - A to Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the ConsolidatedFinancialStatement of the 
Ashoka MetcastLimited (“the Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financialstatements of Ashoka Metcast Limited as of and 
for the year ended March31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financialreporting of 
Ashoka MetcastLimited (hereinafter referred to as the “HoldingCompany”) and its wholly owned subsidiary 
company, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, itswholly owned subsidiary company and associate 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internalfinancial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reportingcriteria established by the Holding Company considering the essentialcomponents of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Auditof Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
theInstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilitiesinclude the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequateinternal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuringthe orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherenceto the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets,the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy andcompleteness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internalfinancial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Auditof Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the “GuidanceNote”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute ofChartered Accountants of 
India, and deemed to be prescribed underSection 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internalfinancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require thatwe comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financialcontrols over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements 
was established and maintained and if suchcontrols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenceabout the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financialreporting with reference to these consolidated financialstatements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internalfinancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
anunderstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting withreference to these consolidated 
financial statements, assessing the riskthat a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
designand operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessedrisk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement,including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
thefinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the auditevidence obtained by the other auditors 
in terms of their reportsreferred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient andappropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internalfinancial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to theseconsolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to this consolidated financial 
statement
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
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(1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the group;

(2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the group are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the group; and

(3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the group’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion
In our opinion the holding company and its wholly owned subsidiary, in all material respects, have maintained 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and were operating effectively as at 
31st March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the holding 
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters
Our report under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of 
the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to a subsidiary company and an associate company, which are 
companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such associate 
company.

FOR, SUNIL PODDAR & CO..
(Chartered Accountants)
 Firm Reg. No 110603W

Date  : 30th July, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad
UDIN :20443450AAAALP6046

CA PANKAJ AGARWAL
Partner

M. No. 443450
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AUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020
Particulars Note 

No
 As at 

 31st March, 
2020

 As at 
 31st March, 

2019
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital 2  10,71,00,000  10,71,00,000 
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3  9,64,19,443  10,23,79,660 
(c) Money received against share warrants  -    -   

2 Share application pending for allotment  -    -   
3 Non Current Liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 4  6,07,30,370  4,80,75,000 
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5  64,27,206  (29,378)
(c) Other Non Current Liabilities 6  2,82,07,000  2,82,07,000 
(d) Long term Provisions  -    -   

4 Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term Borrowings 7  8,52,30,581  -   
(b) Trade Payable 8

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

 -   

total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 4,85,66,062  -   

(c) Other Current Liabilities 9  48,48,079  10,29,568 
(d) Short Term Provisions 10  3,00,963  -   

TOTAL RS...  43,78,29,703  28,67,61,850 
II. ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets

(a) Fixed Assets 11
(i)	 Tangible Assets  9,18,63,623 4,04,25,594 
(ii)	 Capital Work In Progress  -    5,09,66,653 

(b) Non Current Investments 12  5,44,31,975  5,49,15,887 
(c) Long Term loans and advances 13  3,23,49,660  4,57,91,045 
(d) Goodwill on consolidation  2,35,43,765  1,07,51,855 
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (net)
(f) Other Non Current Assets 14  85,19,664  1,05,67,374 

2 Current Assets
(a) Current Investements
(b) Short Term Loans and Advances
(c) Inventories 15  8,47,25,229  -   
(d) Trade Receivables 16  11,82,69,590  5,74,98,112 
(e) Cash and cash equivalents 17  26,27,925  77,60,178 
(f) Other Current Assets 18  2,14,98,273  80,85,153 

TOTAL RS...  43,78,29,703  28,67,61,850 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 1
Notes referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALP6046

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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AUDITED  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31st March, 

2020 

 As at 
31st March, 

2019
I. INCOME

Revenue from operations (Net) 19  21,98,52,423  -   
II Other Income 20  7,57,505  28,39,875 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  22,06,09,927  28,39,875 
IV Expenses

Cost of Material Consumed 21  19,31,64,660  -   
Purchase of Stock In Trade 22  1,72,39,200  -   
Change in Inventories 23  (3,66,13,466)  -   
Employee Benefits Expense 24  56,30,194  7,37,455 
Finance Costs 25  29,96,198  12,345 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  27,22,865  3,55,745 
Other Expenses 27  3,44,89,996  25,71,478 
Total Expenses  21,96,29,648  36,77,023 

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional & extraordinary 
items and Tax (III-IV)

 9,80,279  (8,37,148)

VI Exceptional items  -    -   
VII  Profit before extraordinary items and tax [V-VI]  9,80,279  (8,37,148)
VIII Extraordinary Items
IX Profit before Tax (VII - VIII)  9,80,279  (8,37,148)
X Tax Expense :

(1)     Current Tax  -    -   
(2)     Deferred Tax (Expense)/Revenue  2,44,894  34,945 
(3)     Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -   

XI  Profit for the period from continuing operations  7,35,385  (8,72,093)
XII  Profit from discontinuing operation  -    -   
XIII  Tax Expense of discontinuing operations  -    -   
XIV Add/(Less): Share in Associate  (4,83,912)  (10,66,346)
XV Profit for the period [XI+XIV]  2,51,474  (19,38,440)
XVI Earning Per Share:

-	 Basic 0.02 (0.18)
-	 Diluted 0.02 (0.18)

Notes to Accounts: Notes refer above & notes attached thereto form an integral part of profit & loss statement.
This is the profit & loss statement refered to in our report of even date.

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALP6046

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2020
PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19
A.	 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
	 Net Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account  9,80,279  (8,37,148)
	 Adjustment for :
		  Depreciation  27,22,865  3,55,745 
		  Deferred Tax  -   
		  Loss on sale of assets  1,70,200 
		  Profit from sale of investment  (23,76,534)
		  Preliminary Expenses Written Off  20,47,711  47,70,576  14,23,673  (4,26,915)
	 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  57,50,855  (12,64,064)
	 Working Capital Changes
	 Adjustment for 
		  Trade Receivables  (6,07,71,478)  1,94,55,000 
		  Other current Assets  (1,34,13,120)  (4,10,32,822)
		  Inventory (8,47,25,229)
		  Other Current Liabilities  38,18,511  2,62,761 
		  Non Current Liabilities  -   
		  Trade Payable & Other Liabilities  4,88,67,025 
	 Net Changes in Working Capital (10,62,24,291)  (2,13,15,061)
	 Cash Generated from operations (10,04,73,436)  (2,25,79,125)
	 Cash Flow from Exceptional Claim  -   
	 Direct Tax Paid During the Year (Net off Refund Received)  -   
	 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (10,04,73,436)  (2,25,79,125)
B.	 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  :
	 Dividend Income  -    -   
	 Receipt of loan given  1,34,41,385  -   
	 Proceeds From Liquid Assets  7,23,76,534 
	 Other Investments  89,87,181 
	 Sale of Property Plant & Equipment  9,08,00,629  18,88,295 
	 Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (10,67,86,784)  (5,05,96,092)
	 NET CASH FLOW FROM  IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (25,44,770)  3,26,55,918 
C.	 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  :
	 Issue of Share Capital  -   
	 Securities Premium Received  -   
	 Proceed from Unsecured Loan  1,26,55,370 
	 Payment of Unsecured Loan  (73,60,000)
	 Share Issue Expense  -   
	 Receipt from Short Term Loans  8,52,30,581 
	 Payment of Short Term Loans  -   
	 Deposits Refunded/Made  12,00,000 
	 NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  9,78,85,951  (61,60,000)
	� NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS
 (51,32,255)  39,16,793 

	� CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF 
THE YEAR

 77,60,180  38,43,387 

	� CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE CLOSE OF THE 
YEAR

 26,27,925  77,60,180 

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALP6046

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020



Annual Report 2019-2020

68

ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

NOTE: 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CORPORATE INFORMATION 
ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED was incorporated on 29/07/2009. Formerly known as Tanya Estates Private 
Limited was converted into Ashoka Metcast Private Limited and then further into Ashoka Metcast Ltd. The 
Company has been promoted by Mr. Shalin Shah.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these Consolidated 
Financial Statements to comply in all material respects, with the Accounting Standards notified under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 
convention.

1.	 Basis of preparation
	 a)	 Compliance with AS

	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant 
to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) as amended and other relevant provisions of 
the Act.

	 b)	 Basis of consolidation
	 The Company consolidates all entities which are controlled by it.
	 The Company establishes control when; it has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to 

variablereturns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect the entity’s returns 
by using its powerover relevant activities of the entity.

	 Entities controlled by the Company are consolidated from the date control commences until the 
date controlceases.

	 All inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on 
consolidation.

		  Principle of Consolidation:
	 The Consolidated financial statements (CFS) relate to Ashoka Metcast Limited (“The Company”), 

its subsidiary company and its associate company. The CFS have been prepared in accordance with 
Accounting Standard 21 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” (AS-21) notified by Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 on following basis: 

(a)	 The financial statements of the company and its subsidiary company have been combined on 
a line to line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,income 
and expenses, after fully eliminating intra group transactions resulting in unrealized profit or 
losses as per Accounting Standard 21 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” (AS-21) notified 
by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2006. 

(b)	 The difference between the Cost of Investments in the subsidiary and the Company’s share of 
net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is recognized in the financial 
statements as Goodwill or capital reserve on consolidation as the case may be. 

(c)	  Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary is identified and presented 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet separately from liabilities and the Equity of Company’s 
shareholders (including preference shareholders). Minority Interest in the net assets of 
consolidated subsidiary consists of - Amount of equity and preference shares attributable 
to minorities at the date on which investment in subsidiary is made - The minority’s share of 
movements in equity since the date the parent subsidiary relationship came into existence. 
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(d)	 Minority’s interest’s share of net profit/loss for the year consolidated subsidiary is identified 
and adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable 
to Shareholders of the company. 

(e)	 As far as possible the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting 
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in 
the same manner as the company’s separate financial statements. 

(f)	 Investment in Associate Companies has been accounted for Equity method as per the 
Accounting Standard (AS) 23- Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated 
Financial Statements”.

(g)	 The Company accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates, 
after eliminating unrealized profits and losses resulting from transaction between the 
company and its associate to the extent such change is attributable to the associate’s Profit 
and Loss Statement, through its reserve for balance based available information. 

(h)	 The difference between the cost of investment in the associate and the share of net assets 
at the time of acquisition of shares in associate is identified in the financial statements as 
Goodwill or Capital reserve as the case may be. 

	 The list of subsidiary company and associate company which are included in the consolidation 
and the Company’s holdings therein as under: 

Name of Subsidiary / Associate Percentage of Ownership Country of 
Incorporation31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Rhetan Rolling Mills Pvt. Ltd. 100% 100% India
Vivanza Biosciences Ltd. 23.75% 23.75% India

	 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
are consistent with those of previous year except for the change in accounting policy, if any 
explained below.

2.	 Significant Accounting Policies:
	 (i)	 Basis for Accounting

	 The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an 
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, 
Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant 
provisions thereof except those specified otherwise.

	 (ii)	 Use of Estimates and Judgments
	 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Group is required to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

	 The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 
periods affected. Significant judgments and estimates about the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities include useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, impairment of tangible assets, 
intangible assets including goodwill, investments, employee benefits and other provisions and 
recoverability of deferred tax assets.

	 (iii)	 Valuation Of Inventories:
	 The cost of inventory is determined on Weighted Average cost formula method on relevant 

categories of inventories on a consistent basis after providing for obsolete, slow moving and 
defective inventories wherever necessary.
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	 The cost of inventories consists of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and cost incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition.

	 Inventories have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

	 (iv)	 Revenue Recognition:
	 All known income and expenditure quantifiable till the date of finalization of accounts are 

accounted on accrual basis when virtual certainty is established.

		  a)	 Revenue from Operation:
	 Sales revenue is recognized when property in the goods with all risk rewards and effective 

control of goods usually associated with ownership are transferred to buyer at price. Sales 
comprise manufacturing and trading sales and are exclusive of excise duty and local taxes and 
sales return.		

	 The various Discounts and rate differences on  the Sales those accepted/rejected are 
accounted in the year, however if the same is of  material amount effecting the current year 
profit/loss are separately shown under the Prior Period head of the profit and loss account.

		  b)	 Other operational revenue 
	 Other operational revenue represent income earned from the activities incidental to the 

business and is recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the 
terms of the contract.

		  c)	 Other Income :
	 Interest income is recorded at accrued or due whichever is earlier at applicable interest rate 

and other items of other income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.

	 (v)	 Tangible Assets:
		  a)	 Tangible Fixed Assets :

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises purchase price 
including import duties and other non refundable taxes or levies, expenditure incurred in the 
course of construction or acquisition, administrative and other general over head expenses 
that are directly attributable to the cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the 
purpose of use for the business.

		  b)	 Base of measurement followed by the Group  is “Cost Model.”

	 (vi)	 Intangible Assets :
	 Intangible Assets are recorded at acquisition cost when the asset is identifiable, non- monetary in 

nature, without physical substance and it is probable that such expenditure is to result in future 
economic benefits to the entity.

	 (vii)	 Depreciation:
	 Freehold land is not depreciated. Other items of the tangible assets are depreciated over the useful 

life of the assets prescribed in the Part C of the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The value of 
the asset for depreciation over the period is considered reducing the determined residual value of 
the asset not more than 5% of the asset.Residual value for building has been considered at 5%. For 
the purpose of calculation of Depreciation, the method followed by Group is Straight Line Method 
(SLM). The depreciation is provided from the date of the asset ready to use for the commercial 
operations. The useful lives taken for the purpose of depreciation of different assets are prescribed 
as follows:
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Particulars Useful Life

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Computers 3 years

Vehicle 8years

Plant & Machinery 15 years

Buildings 30 years

Electric Installations 10 years

	 (viii)	 Leases:
	 Assets taken on lease by the Group in its capacity as lessee, where the Group has substantially 

all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance lease. Such a lease is capitalized 
at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of the minimum lease 
payments and a liability is recognized for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated 
between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
outstanding liability for each year.

	 Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially 
vest with the lessor, are recognized as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis.

	 (ix)	 Consolidated Financial Statement
	 As per the requirement and rules of the consolidated financial statement, the group will follow the 

same for the preparation of consolidated financial Statement as and when it is required.

	 (x)	 Investment in Associates in Consolidated financial Statement:
	 As per the requirement and rules of the consolidated financial statement, the group will follow the 

same for the preparation of consolidated financial Statement.

	 (xi)	 Government Grants:
a)	 Government grants of the nature of contribution towards capital expenditure (to the extent 

utilized in the year) are treated as of Capital Fund.

b)	 Government grants for meeting the revenue expenditure are treated as income of the year in 
which they are realized, except that they will be treated as accrued income where sanctions 
have been issued before the last day of the year and there is reasonable certainty of collection 
and realization.

c)	 Unutilized government grants are treated as funds to be carried forward and refunded, as per 
government directions and exhibited as a Liability.

	 (xii)	 Cash Flow Statement :
	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated.

	 (xiii)	 Foreign currency transaction:
a)	 Transaction denominated in foreign currencies is normally recorded at the exchange rate 

prevailing at the time of the transaction.

b)	 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at yearend 
rates. In case of monetary items which are covered by forward exchange contract, the 
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difference between the yearend rate and rate on the date of contract is recognized as 
exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contract has been recognized over the 
life of the contract if the forward contract is entered.

c)	 Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on 
translation at the year-end rate is recognized in the profit and loss account except for such 
adjustment of exchange difference arising on long term foreign currency monetary items in 
so far they are relatable to the acquisition of a depreciable capital assets which are adjusted 
to the cost of assets and depreciated over the remaining useful life of such assets.

d)	 The premium or discount on the Forward Exchange Contract entered into hedge foreign 
currency risk of an existing asset/liability is recognized / amortized as an income/expense over 
the life of the contract in the statement of profit and loss account for the trade transaction 
and capitalized to the asset in case the same is capital expenditure.

	 (xiv)	 Impairment of Tangible and intangible assets :
	 The Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an 

indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying 
value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s 
net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows expected to 
arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal.

	 An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an asset 
is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

	 As per Accounting Standard(AS-28) impairment of assets the Group has carried the impairment 
test during the year. Resultant it is found that there is no material impairment loss in the carried 
cost in the assets in the books. The recoverable amount is not material, lower than the carrying 
amount in the accounts hence the same is not considered.	

	 (xv)	 Investment:
	 All the investments are treated as term investments and valued at their cost of acquisition. 

Provisions for diminution in the value of long-term investments are made only if such decline is 
other than temporary in the opinion of the management.Investments other than in subsidiary and 
associate have been accounted as per Accounting Standard (AS-13) Accounting for investments.

	 (xvi)	 Provisions and Contingent liabilities:
	 Provisions are recognized when the present obligation of the past event gives rise to a probable 

outflow embodying economic benefits on settlement, and the amount of obligation can be reliably 
estimated.

	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed after careful evaluation of facts and legal aspects of the matter 
involved.

	 Provisions and contingent liability are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates.

	 (xvii)	Provision for Current and Deferred Tax:
	 Taxes on income are computed using Tax Deferral Assets or Liability method where taxes accrue in 

the same period, the respective revenue and expenses arises. The differences that result between 
the profit offered for income tax and the profit as per financial statements are identified and 
Deferred Tax Liability is recognized for timing difference, that originate in one accounting period 
and reverse in another based on the tax effect of the prevailing enacted regulation in force.

	 Deferred Tax Assets are recognized subject to prudence, only, if there is reasonable certainty that 
they will be realized and are subject to appropriate reviews at each balance sheet date for the 
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purpose of measurement of Deferred Tax Liability or Assets, the applicable tax rates and enacted 
regulations expected to apply in the year in which the temporary differences are expected to be 
recovered or settled are applied.

	 Minimum Alternative Tax Credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax furnishing the specified period. 
In the year, MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, the said asset is created by way of credit to the profit and loss statement and shown as MAT 
Credit entitlement.

	 For current year, the Group has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. 
Accordingly, the Group has recognized provision for taxation and re-measured its deferred 
tax liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said Section. The impact of such change has been 
recognized over the year ended March 31, 2020 since the Group has used effective tax rate for full 
financial year.

	 (xviii) Borrowing Cost:
	 Borrowing cost directly attributable and/or funds borrowed generally and used for the purpose of 

acquisition/construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready 
for its intended use are capitalized, at its capitalization rate to expenditure on that assets, for the 
period, until all activities necessary to prepare qualifying assets for its intended 

	 use are complete. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they 
are incurred.

	 (xix)	 Retirement Benefits:
	 Group does not have any defined benefit plan. The Group does not permit accumulating of unused 

leaves. The Group does not provide any long-term employee benefits.

	 (xx)	 Sundry Debtors:
	 No provision has been made for the bad and doubtful debts. The bad debts are charged to revenue 

in the year of, as and when they arise.

	 (xxi)	 Segment Reporting
		  (a)	 Primary Segment Reporting (Business Segment):

	 During the year Holding company is in 2 business segments that is trading of goods and trading 
of steel, hence the reporting on the primary business segment in pursuance to Accounting 
Standard No.17 issued by ICAI has been disclosed in “Disclosure to the Standalone Financial 
Statement”.

		  (b)	 Secondary Reporting (Geographical Segment) :
	 Geographical environment in which Group operates does not materially differ considering 

the political and economic environment, the type of customers, assets employed and the risk 
associated in respect of each of the geographical area. Hence the reporting on the secondary 
business segment in pursuance to accounting Standard No. 17 issued by ICAl is not applicable.

	 (xxii)	Earnings Per Share:
	 Basic Earnings Per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period.

	 For the purpose of calculation of Diluted Earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential shares.
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	 (xxiii) Cash & Cash Equivalents:
	 Cash and cash equivalents for the propose of cash flow statement comprise of cash in hand, cash 

at bank, fixed deposit, margin money deposit and short-term deposit in bank with original maturity 
of 12 months or less.

DISCLOSURE TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2020:
(i)	 Accounting for Taxes on Income:

(a)	 Deferred tax assets/liabilities Charges/credit during the year given in Notes to financial statements.

(b)	 The provision of current taxes has been made in the accounts as the taxable income computed as 
per Income Tax Act,1961.

(ii)	 Related Party Disclosures:
	 During the year the company has entered into transactions with the related parties List of related parties 

with whom transaction have taken place during the year are as follows:

Name of the person Relation with the Company

Lesha Industries Ltd. Enterprise significantly influenced by KMP.

Shalin Shah Director

Ashok Shah Director

Bhumika Thakkar Company Secretary

K.C. Parikh (from 24/04/2019 to 31/07/2019) Key Managerial Personnel

	 	 Transactions with the Related parties

	 The transactions entered during the year with the above parties are tabulated as below and the 
same are at length’s price.

Sl. Nature of Transactions Current Year Previous Year

1 Remuneration 3,56,000 -

2 Loan Taken 3,66,40,370 8,00,000

3 Loan Repaid 2,34,35,000 87,10,000

4 Rent Expense 1,54,000 1,42,378

5 Reimbursement of expense 23,364 -

(iii)	 Foreign currency transactions
	 a)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.

	 b)	 Transactions and balances
	 During the year, company has not entered into foreign currency transaction.

(iv)	 Segmentation Reporting:
	 (a)	 Primary Segment Reporting (Business Segment):

	 The reporting on the primary business segment in pursuance to Accounting Standard No.17 issued 
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by ICAI has been made as under:

Consolidated Segment – Wise Revenue, Results and Capital Employed

Particulars Year  Ended  

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

Audited Audited

1.	 Segment Revenue   

	 (a)	 Steel 2042.84 0.00

	 (b)	 Trading of  Goods 155.68 0.00

	 (c)	 Others 0.00 0.00

Total 2198.52 0.00

Less: Inter Segment Revenue - -

Net sales/Income From Operations 2198.52 0.00

2.	 Segment Results 

	 (a)	 Steel 435.50 0.00

	 (b)	 Trading of  Goods 25.11 0.00

	 (c)	 Others 7.58 28.40

Total 468.19 28.40

Less: (i)	 Other Un-allocable

		  Expenditure net off (458.39) (36.77)

Total Profit Before Tax 9.80 (8.37)

3.	 Capital Employed

	 (Segment assets – Segment Liabilities)

	 (a)	 Steel Operation 1496.53 547.98

	 (b)	 Trading of  Goods 44.11 0.00

	 (c)	 Other Unallocable items 494.55 1519.82

Total 2035.19 2067.80

(v)	 Impact of Global Health Pandemic (Covid -19) on Company’s Operations
	 Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the nationwide lockdown was imposed from 23rd March, 2020 which 

was further extended by various announcements made by the Central and State Government around 
the time. Manufacturing facility of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary was shut down during 
the lockdown period as the Company and its Subsidiary were not part of Government denominated 
indispensable services. Subsidiary’s manufacturing plant has resumed operations from May 10, 2020 
and the Company started its operations from May 18, 2020. The Company has made assessment of its 
liquidity position for the financial year 2020-21 and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets 
comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right of use assets, investments, inventory 
and trade receivables. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects 
to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent 
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uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be 
different from that estimated as on balance sheet date. 

(vi)	 Additional information, as required under schedule III to the companies act, 2013, of entities consolidated 
as subsidiaries

Particulars Net Assets (total assets 
minus total liabilities)

Share in profit or loss

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount  
(in lacs)

As % of 
consolidated 

profit

Amount  
(in lacs)

PARENT     
AshokaMetcast Limited     
As at March 31, 2020 100.97% 2054.93 -127.09% -3.19
As at March 31, 2019 97.88% 2050.44 43.14% -8.36
SUBSIDIARY   
Rhetan Rolling Mills Pvt. Ltd.   
As at March 31, 2020 -4.60% -93.66 419.92% 10.54
As at March 31, 2019 -1.64% -34.4 1.86% -0.36
ASSOCIATE   
Vivanza Biosciences Ltd.   
As at March 31, 2020 3.63% 73.92 -192.83% -4.84
As at March 31, 2019 3.76% 78.76 55.01% -10.66
Total as at March 31, 2020 100.00% 2035.19 100.00% 2.51
Total as at March 31, 2019 100.00% 2094.80 100.00% -19.38

(v)	 Earnings Per Share:

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Profit Available to Equity Share Holders (A) 2,51,474 (19,38,440)
Number of Equity Share at the beginning 1,07,10,000 1,07,10,000
Shares allotted  during the year by way of bonus - -
Proportionate No. of Equity Shares (B) 1,07,10,000 1,07,10,000
Basic Earnings Per Share (A/B) 0.02 (0.18)
Potential Earnings  (C ) 2,51,474 (19,38,440)
Potential No. of Equity Shares (D) 1,07,10,000 1,07,10,000
Diluted Earnings Per share (C/D) 0.02 (0.18)

(viii)	 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged as and when required to bring uniformity in 
comparison with current year figures

As per our attached Interim Audit report of even date

For, SUNIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG. NO.:110603W

For, ASHOKA METCAST  LIMITED

[CA. PANKAJ AGARWAL]
Partner
M.No. 443450

SHALIN A  SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00297447

ASHOK C SHAH                                   
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02467830

BHUMIKA THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

SUBHA RANJAN DAS
CFO

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
UDIN : 20443450AAAALO8628

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE  : 30th July, 2020
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note - 2 : SHARE CAPITAL
	Sr. No.	 Particulars	 As at	 As at	
				    31st March, 2020	 31st March, 2019

	 1.	 AUTHORISED EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
		  -	 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each	  11,00,00,000.00 	  11,00,00,000.00	
	 2.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

		  1,07,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid.	  10,71,00,000.00 	  10,71,00,000.00 

				     10,71,00,000.00 	  10,71,00,000.00 

	 3.	 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting year
		
		  Particulars 	 As at 31st March, 2020	 As at 31st March, 2019
		  (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)	 No. of 	  Value  	 No. of 	  Value		
				    Share	 Rs.	 Share	 Rs.				
		  - At the beginning of the year	   1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00 	   1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00		
		  - Movement during the period	  -   	  -   	 -  	 -  
		  - Outstanding at the end of the period 	  1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00 	  1,07,10,000 	  10,71,00,000.00		

	 4.	 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
		
		  Name of the Shareholders	 As at 31st March, 2020	 As at 31st March, 2019
		  (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)	 No. of 	 % of 	 No. of 	 % of 
				    Share held	 Holding	 Share held	 Holding		
		  Shalin A. Shah	  18,55,000 	 17.32%	  18,55,000 	 17.32%
		  Leena A. Shah	  5,59,700 	 5.23%	  5,59,700 	 5.23%
		  Shalin A. Shah HUF	  17,95,000 	 16.76%	  17,95,000 	 16.76%		

	 The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Ordinary Shares having par value of Rs.10/- per 
share. Each holder of ordinary share is entitled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. 
In the event of liquidation, the ordinary shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company after payment of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

	 No Ordinary Shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for 
the sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

	 No Ordinary Shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of 5 years preceding 
the date as at which the Balance sheet is prepared.

Note - 3	  : RESERVES & SURPLUS

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

(a) Securities Premium Reserve  10,70,00,000  10,70,00,000 

(b) Profit & Loss Account

Balance brought forward from previous year  (46,20,340)  (26,81,901)

Add: Profit for the period  2,51,474  (19,38,440)

Add  DTL / DTA Adjusted for Previous years  (62,11,691)  -   

Surplus  in the statement of Profit & Loss Account  (1,05,80,557)  (46,20,340)

TOTAL  9,64,19,443  10,23,79,660 



Annual Report 2019-2020

78

ASHOKA METCAST LIMITED

Note  - 4 : LONG TERM BORROWING

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Unsecured

Loans & advances from related parties  6,07,30,370  4,80,75,000 

TOTAL  6,07,30,370  4,80,75,000 

Note  - 5:   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/( DEFERRED TAX ASSETS )

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Opening Balance  (29,378)  (64,322)

Add/(Less) : On account of timing difference  11,16,121  34,944 

Add/(Less) : On account of current year losses  (8,71,227)  -   

Add / (Less) : Earlier Year DTA adjustment  62,11,691  -   

Closing balance  64,27,206  (29,378)
5.1	 Deferred tax is recognized only on  timing difference between the accounting income and taxable 

income, which are capable of reversal in subsequent periods.

5.2	 Deferred assets on carried forward business loss and unabsorbed depreciation is recognized only if 
management certifies with virtual certainity & convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future 
taxable income.

5.3	 Value of deferred tax is assessed on each balance Sheet date and any change in value is recognized in the 
profit & loss appropriation account.

Note  - 6 : OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Advance received for long term contracts  2,82,07,000  2,82,07,000 

TOTAL  2,82,07,000  2,82,07,000 
Note:-
The Company do not have the details of MSME status of their creditors. Hence the company is unable to 
separate dues to SME and non SME and henceforth they have disclosed all the credtiors under the status of 
non SME.

Note  - 7 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Working Capital Loan  8,52,30,581  -   

TOTAL  8,52,30,581  -   
Above Working Capital Loan are secured by hypothication of Company’s Stock, Receivables and block of all 
fixed assets and Collateral Security of Factory Land & Building  and Equitable mortgage of  Personal property 
of Directors and promoter group members and Ashoka Metcast Limited (Holding Company).
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Note  - 8 : TRADE PAYABLES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Sundry Payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises  -    -   

Dues to Others  4,85,66,062  -   

TOTAL  4,85,66,062  -   
Note:-
The Group do not have the details of MSME status of their creditors. Hence the company is unable to separate 
dues to SME and non SME and henceforth they have disclosed all the credtiors under the status of non SME.

Note  - 9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Other Payables

Duties and Taxes  91,622  2,79,486 

Unpaid Expenses  87,622  -   

Other Current Liability  11,50,000  6,47,621 

Advances from customers  1,00,000 

Creditor for Capital Goods  -   

- Dues to micro and small enterprises  -   

- Dues to Others  13,55,962  1,02,461 

Creditors for Expenses  -   

- Dues to micro and small enterprises  -   

- Dues to Others  20,62,873  -   

TOTAL  48,48,079  10,29,568 
Note:-
The Group do not have the details of MSME status of their creditors. Hence the company is unable to separate 
dues to SME and non SME and henceforth they have disclosed all the credtiors under the status of non SME.

Note  - 10 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

 Others 

 Provision for Expenses  3,00,963  -   

TOTAL  3,00,963  -   
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Note  - 12 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

S.I. Particulars No. of shares  
31st March , 2020

 No. of shares 
31st March , 2019

 As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Investment in Equity Shares 
(Non Trade)

(i) Quoted
Others
Lesha Industries Ltd 11,65,430 1,16,543  56,93,418  56,93,418 
Gujarat Natural Resources Ltd. 8,55,000 8,55,000  74,40,850  74,40,850 
Mena Mani Industries Ltd 12,50,000 12,50,000  2,50,00,000  2,50,00,000 

Ashnisha Industries Limited 3,10,781 3,10,781  89,05,091  89,05,091 

In Related Parties (Associate)

Vivanza Biosciences Limited 9,50,000 9,50,000  78,76,528  89,42,874 

Add/(Less): Share of profit (4,83,912) (10,66,346)

TOTAL  5,44,31,975  5,49,15,887 

Market value of Quoted 
Investment

 3,21,84,091  4,90,43,806 

Note  - 13 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Unsecured

i Security Deposit  89,28,084  89,81,134 

ii Capital Advances  7,19,103  71,04,910 

iii Others loans and advances

Loan to staff  3,25,000  5,00,000 

Loan to others  2,23,77,473  2,92,05,000 

TOTAL  3,23,49,660  4,57,91,045 

Note  - 14 : OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Others

i MAT Credit Entitlement  15,244  15,244 

ii Preliminery Expense not written off  8,65,850  12,78,410 

iii Publice Issue expense not written off  20,22,229  30,33,341 

iv Deferred Revenue Expenditure not written off  56,16,341  62,40,379 

 85,19,664  1,05,67,374 
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Note  - 15 : INVENTORIES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

i Raw Materials  4,62,98,353  -   

ii Work in Progress  8,39,821  -   

iii Finished goods  2,62,03,222  -   

iv Stores & Spares  18,13,410  -   

v Scrap  95,70,423 

TOTAL  8,47,25,229  -   

Note  - 16 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

i Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from  
its due date

Unsecured, Considered Good :  3,66,98,112  5,74,98,112 

ii Others

Unsecured, Considered Good :  8,15,71,478  -   

TOTAL  11,82,69,590  5,74,98,112 

Note  - 17 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Balances with Banks

 - In Current Account  23,23,492  68,99,578 

Cash on hand  3,04,433  8,60,600 

TOTAL  26,27,925  77,60,178 

Note  - 18 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Balance with Revenue Authorities  1,81,86,831  76,70,230 
ii Others

Other Receivables  8,58,211  4,01,826 
Advance to Suppliers  23,31,312 
Prepaid Expenses  1,21,919  13,097 
TOTAL  2,14,98,273  80,85,153 

Note  - 19 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Sale of Products  21,98,45,381  -   
ii Other Operating Revenue  7,042  -   

TOTAL  21,98,52,423  -   
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Note  - 20 : OTHER INCOME
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Interest Income  5,72,650  4,46,473 
ii Short term gain on sale of Mutual Fund  -    23,76,534 
iii Other non operating Income

Excess provision written back  25,220  16,868 
Miscellaneous Income  15,324  -   
Balance written Off  1,44,311  -   
TOTAL  7,57,505  28,39,875 

Note  - 21: COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Raw Materials

Opening Stock of Raw Materials  -    -   
Add: Purchase of Materials  23,94,63,013  -   
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials  4,62,98,353  -   
TOTAL  19,31,64,660  -   

Note  - 22: PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

i Purchase of stock in trade  1,72,39,200  -   
TOTAL  1,72,39,200  -   

Note  - 23 : CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE, WORK IN PROCESS AND FINISHED GOODS 
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Opening Stock

Finished Goods  -    -   
WIP  -    -   

 -    -   
ii Closing stock

Finished Goods  2,62,03,222  -   
Work in process  8,39,821  -   
Scrap  95,70,423  -   

 3,66,13,466  -   
TOTAL  (3,66,13,466)  -   

Note  - 24: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Salaries, Bonus & Allowances  54,79,256  7,37,455 
ii Employee Welfare Expense  1,10,241  -   
iii Contribution to provident and other funds  40,697  -   

TOTAL  56,30,194  7,37,455 
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Note  - 25 : FINANCE COST
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
i Interest Expense

Working Capital Facility  29,58,963  -   

 29,58,963  -   

ii Other Financial Cost

Bank Charges  11,275  12,345 

Other Processing & Related Expenses  25,960  -   

 37,235  12,345 

TOTAL  29,96,198  12,345 

Note  - 26: DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION
S.I. Particulars  As at 

31st March , 2020
 As at 

31st March , 2019
Depreciation  27,22,865  3,55,745 
TOTAL  27,22,865  3,55,745 

Note  - 27 : OTHER EXPENSES

S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

i Manufacturing Expenses

Stores & Spares Consumed  77,44,402  -   

Power & Fuel  1,11,18,377  -   

Wages to contractors  63,81,687  -   

Loading & Unloading Expense  77,396  -   

Material Handling Charges  11,80,126  -   

Roll Design Charges  1,11,100  -   

Miscellaneous manufacturing expense  4,04,248  -   

 2,70,17,336  -   

ii Other Adminstrative and Selling Expense

Audit Fees  1,15,000  47,500 

Legal & Professional Expense  3,58,540  7,500 

Public Issue Expense W/off  10,11,113  10,11,113 
Preliminary Expense written off  4,12,560  4,12,560 

Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off  6,24,038  -   

Demat Charges  -    679 
E-Voting Expenses  21,000  -   
Roc Fees  16,200  15,800 

Rent Expense  1,30,504  1,42,372 

Miscelleneous Expense  10,474  3,75,649 
Advertising Expesnes  25,450  12,825 
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S.I. Particulars  As at 
31st March , 2020

 As at 
31st March , 2019

Market Making Fees expense  4,80,000  -   
Share Transfer Exp  34,029  -   
Office exp  1,26,400  1,14,218 
Annual Listing Fees  94,200  89,699 
Income Tax Exp  16,680  -   
Rates & Taxes  1,34,925  -   

Repair and Maintenance  3,06,702  38,663 

Electricity exp  1,80,030  91,010 

Loss on sale of asset  -    1,70,200 

Conveyance Exp  1,29,384  41,690 

Director Remuneration  2,00,000  -   

Donation  11,000  -   

Freight & Forwarding Charges  24,39,271  -   

Insurance Expense  95,866  -   

Printing & Stationery Expense  32,975  -   

Membership Fees  6,000  -   

Security Expense  4,01,726  -   

Software Expense  5,000  -   

Website Exp  3,564  -   

Telephone & Internet Charges  50,031  -   

 74,72,660  25,71,478 

 3,44,89,996  25,71,478 
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